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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to investors only after due and careful
consideration.

Given the companies listed on GEM are general small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and

no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising

from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Health Group Inc. (“CHG” or the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2) there are no other matters the

omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (hereinafter referred to as the
"Board"), I hereby announce the audit results of CHG and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as "Group") for the year ended
December 31, 2019.

Focusing on the core strategy of building R & D-type Digital
Medical Co health care, the group, after 20 years of struggle, focuses
on brain science, allergy and virus three major disease areas, and
establishes five major specialty brands: Hein mental psychology,
Bayern anti-allergy, Yuejie addiction, Jianshou anti infatuation, Hein
heart and brain.

Around the core treatment field, we have built a digital medical
terminal service complex under the Internet architecture, forming a
closed-loop system from scientific research to rehabilitation. From
the hospital big data clinical research to digital scientific research
product promotion service, to the construction of digital research
clinical research specialty, to the self-supporting O20 special
medical medicine diagnosis, to the exploration of rehabilitation and

tourism medical services.

The Company proposes two models in the epidemic situation and the
new era of medical treatment. 1. "Research based treatment RWS
therapy model" is to carry out clinical and big data research on Five
specialty clinical through real world clinical research, guide drug
treatment in the research, and obtain medical big data guidance
research in the treatment. 2. The D-CRCO model (Digital-Clinical
Research Commercialization Organization) is a digital clinical
research promotion platform. It uses big data clinical research to
precisely enable the commercialization of products. These two
models will redefine research-based treatment and research-based

promotion to replace traditional treatment and commercialization.

Novel coronavirus has a grand plan for scientific research service. It
is a sure card to reorganize and organize existing drugs through the
big data real clinical research, and find the best way to cure the
disease. This center plays a crucial role in the fight against the new
RWS disease. We found that a novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) was
inhibited by a number of drugs such as Lito Bernard Vee (Ritonavir),

and the efficacy was verified in patients.

The group established a biological sample testing laboratory,
equipped with waters UPLC-MS / ms.xevo TQS, which is officially
open to the public. The laboratory mainly serves clinical research,
especially the clinical research experiment of antiviral drugs.
Management believes this will enhance the group's competitiveness

in the new clinical research.
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In terms of big data medical services, we have established research
digital special area drug diagnosis with many top medical institutions
in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and other places, as well as the top
100 chain and digital medical groups such as Gaoji medical,
haiwangxingchen, micro medical group and miaozhou medical
group, yuequit smoking research and treatment department, Hein
psychological research and treatment department, baimin fever and
cough research and treatment area, antivirus Drug research and
treatment areas will play an important role in the epidemic and post
epidemic era.

With the implementation of many measures of China's new medical
reform and the arrival of the era of digital economy, we believe that
the company will focus on the cultivation of three major diseases in
15 years, and will break out a huge momentum, promote the
company's business growth, and take off again with China.

By order of the Board
GUO Xia

Chairman

10 March 2020
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Year ended 31 December

#E+ A=t —"HILFE

2019 2018
—E—JUE AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRWTIT ANRHETIT
Results ES

Revenue W zs 63,216 59,606
Profit for the year FENEF 27,792 23,164

Assets and Liabilities BENEE
Total Assets O E 111,232 68,793
Total Liabilities FR=Ni 54,252 39,605
Shareholders’ equity Ji% HRRE 56,980 29,188

1. The Group recorded a consolidated turnover of approximately L. #HE_Z - NET+A=Z+F—HIEFE “REE )R

RMB63,216,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the SEESRSE 2 AL B N HE63,216,0000T, B & —/\
“Year”), which represents approximately 6.1% increase from [ 2 % SE N2 2 N R 59,606,0007C _ET146.1%
approximately RMB59,606,000 for the year ended 31 December

2018.

2. The Group recorded a profit before taxation of approximately 2. ARAE AR AR [ B AS R AR T R 4 A N [&32,454,0007C,

RMB32,454,000 for the Year, as compared with a profit before T 2 — )\ [F BB A R 40 74 A\ R 27,668,000 7C -
taxation of approximately RMB27,668,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

3. The Group recorded an operating cash outflow before tax paid of 3. 7 4F JF A 42 [ 45 £ PE B 4y i tH 898 A 77,000

approximately RMB77,000 for the Year, as compared with TG, T\ AE R A ROE B S iR AR A N RS
operating cash inflow of approximately RMB3,008,000 in year 3,008,0007C o
2018.

4. The basic and diluted earnings per share is RMB2.8 cents in 4, B —JUAE R BRI A N R 2 84, R — )\ EEF
2019, while basic and diluted earnings per share was RMB2.33 HE R 2 N2 33 il o
cents in year 2018.

TEEREEERRAS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

RESULTS

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB63,216,000
for the Year, which represents approximately 6.1% increase from
approximately RMB59,606,000 in 2018. Among them, revenue
from post-marketing research and academic extension services
are about RMBS55,360,000 accounting for 87.57% of total
revenue; revenue from contractual clinical research services are
about RMB72,000, accounting for 0.1% of total revenue; revenue
from provision of contracted pharmaceutical development
services are about RMB7,784,000, accounting for 12.31% of
total revenue; (a) clinical research is one of the four growth
driving platforms that the Group strives to build. The
research-based promotion of terminal clinical medicine, i.e.
post-marketing research and academic promotion services, has
been widely recognized by the market; the contribution of
revenue accounted for 87.57%; (b) the Group's business of
provision of contracted pharmaceutical development services
also increased considerably in this Year, with the contribution of
revenue accounting for 12.31%, an increase of 3,326% over last
year.

The Group recorded a profit before taxation of approximately
RMB32,454,000, for the Year, as compared with profit before
taxation of approximately RMB27,668,000 in the corresponding
period last year. Net profit in 2019 was approximately
RMB27,792,000, and in 2018 was approximately RMB23,164,000.
This Year's earnings are mainly due to the income of launch

market research, medical and medical market services (PMS).

Total consolidated administrative expenses and staff costs were
approximately RMB20,871,000 for the Year and the corresponding
period last year is approximately RMB24,778,000.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current assets and its net
assets were approximately RMB54,743,000 (2018: approximately
RMB25,887,000) and approximately RMB56,980,000 (2018:
approximately RMB29,188,000) respectively.

The gearing ratio was approximately 1.35% as at 31 December
2019 (2018: approximately 2.18%). The gearing ratio is derived
by dividing the total of borrowings by total assets. The gearing
ratio has decreased for the Year when compared to 31 December
2018 because total borrowings unchanged, total assets increased.

6 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

g gl

A A B ) 2RI N R 63,216,0000C, B AR HH 2
NN RHE59,606,0007C_ETH#)6.1% 0 HrP ETEAFS
R BT IR N 89 N R 55,360,0007C, AR 2 LE
1 7587.57% ; 5 HIEG IR RIS HLA RN BT 72,0007C,
PN Z EL 1 550.19% ; FREALE 445 5 BREE IR % 40 N LB
7,784,0007C £%WAZ%W%nm%,@)$%Uﬁﬁﬂ
T 1 VY K A= R 8 T 5 2 — B R RT3 40 5T 1Y) A% e R 18
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ& A IR 45 21 77 45 1
ZRRE S NEER T 587.57%;  (b) FRALG AL BB
%tﬁ%&k%&%%%,%kamﬁw%um%,m%
AEHAE3,226% 0

A A SR [ AT BR A AT A 49 ]E32,454,0000T, T2+
S IR A HT R 40 N R 27,668,0000C - — LR
#075527,792,0007C, &/ \4E41723,164,0000C. AAFEE
A [ 8 ) 2 o A T AR B R 9% B R AT R RS =2 I
N

AAEFEARLE I 2 AT N B T3 A A AN R 20,871,000
JC, FAFEFRIHEA A [ 24,778,0007T

RBEE. MBEERRAMELE

R oFE—NEF A =+—H, AEIFRIEENAR
#54,743,0007C (. F—/\F: £ NE#25,887,00000) ;
TR EE R A N ) 56,980,00000 (& —/\4F: #12% N R
29,188,0007C)

BE-F-NF+_HA=1+—H, FIHEEHR1.35% (—
F— /I K052.18%) o FLFF L2382 Mt 15 A A bR LA
%%Eﬁﬁmcﬁ:;*A$+ H=+—HM, KIF
FEMFTR ELERA il b, R R A, S .



BB R R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group financed its operations with its own
working capital and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2019,
the secured bank borrowing of the Group was approximately
HK$1,650,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,650,000), in which
approximately HK$1,650,000 (2018: approximately HK$1,650,000)
are repayable within a period of not exceeding 5 years and there
is no secured bank borrowing repayable beyond 5 years (2018:
Nil), and there was no other borrowing as at 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
further funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares,

convertible notes, and issuance of new debts, etc.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the Year, the Group's transactions were substantially
denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). As such, the foreign currency
risk of the Group is limited. Currently, the Group has not adopted

any financial instrument for hedging purposes.
TREASURY POLICIES

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in
managing the Group's cash and maintaining a strong and healthy
liquidity to ensure that the Group is well placed to take advantage
of future growth opportunities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

This winter, a novel coronavirus disease epidemic raged, the
rapid increase in confirmed cases, Wuhan's sealed City, more
than 70 countries in the world have not been spared. No one, no
country can be the real embodiment of the global village, so that
every enterprise is undergoing great changes. We are very glad
that the business transformation started at the end of 2018, so that
we are proud to announce our performance in 2019 and would
like to review it as follows:

The Company proposes two models in the epidemic situation and
the new era of medical treatment. 1. "Research based treatment
RWS therapy model" is to carry out clinical and big data research
on Five specialty clinical through real world clinical research,
guide drug treatment in the research, and obtain medical big data
guidance research in the treatment. 2. The D-CRCO model
(Digital-Clinical Research Commercialization Organization) is a
digital clinical research promotion platform. It uses big data
clinical research to precisely enable the commercialization of
products. These two models will redefine research-based treatment
and research-based promotion to replace traditional treatment
and commercialization.
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Novel coronavirus has a grand plan for scientific research
service. It is a sure card to reorganize and organize existing
medicines through the big data real clinical research, and find the
best treatment for RWS. We found that a novel coronavirus
(2019-nCoV) was inhibited by Lito Bernard Vee and Ritonavir
and proved to be effective in patients.

The Company has set up a biological sample testing laboratory,
which is equipped with Waters UPLC-MS/MS.Xevo TQS and is
officially open to the public. The lab mainly serves clinical
research, especially clinical trials of antiviral drugs.

In terms of big data medical services, we have established
research digital special area medical diagnosis with many top
medical institutions in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and other
places, as well as the top 100 chain and digital medical groups
such as Gaoji medical, haiwangxingchen, micro medical group
and miaozhou medical group, such as yuequit smoking research
and treatment specialty, Hein psychological research and
treatment specialty, baimin fever and cough research and
treatment specialty, disease resistance and treatment specialty
Poison research and treatment areas will play an important role in

the epidemic and post epidemic era.

Around the core treatment field, we have built a digital medical
terminal service complex under the Internet architecture, forming
a closed-loop system from scientific research to rehabilitation. 1.
From hospital big data clinical research to digital scientific
research product promotion service, 2. To jointly build digital
research clinical research specialty, 3. To self-supporting 020
special specialty medical diagnosis, 4. To explore rehabilitation
medical and tourism medical services.

PROSPECTS

The Company's management believes that there are three areas of
high concern during and after the outbreak: Tobacco addictive
diseases, epidemic depression and allergic diseases of epidemic
environment and epidemic drugs. These complications lead to

more terrible deaths and medical expenses.

As a result of these outbreaks, The Company will obtain
extraordinary growth from post market clinical research (PMS),
real digital clinical research (RWS), digital medical marketing
and other activities (ADP) and the establishment of three major

specialized medical services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. Wuhan virus reported that the first several deaths were
long-term smokers. A Middle East pneumonia (also known as
coronavirus pneumonia) in early South Korea also confirmed
that the death rate of smokers was far higher than that of
non-smokers. According to the health China action issued by the
State Council, one in three smokers dies of cancer, and the
average life span of smokers is 10 years shorter than that of
non-smokers. China has nearly 400 million smokers and 700

million second-hand cigarettes.

The Company's "Yue quit smoking research and treatment
specialty" has been established with top medical institutions,
China Japan Friendship Hospital, Shanghai Ruijin Hospital and
micro medicine Ping'an good doctor and other famous entities
cooperate with the Internet Hospital; the core product is Yueting
and Guoyao Zhunzi patented smoking cessation products
produced by affiliated enterprises; in the treatment of smoking
cessation and lung protection, we use Kalinin to treat expectoration
and asthma, and prevent COPD raw materials and preparations
produced by affiliated enterprises of our group.

2. There will be an outbreak of epidemic depression in both the
epidemic and post epidemic era. The group clinical center has set
up a "Hearn psychological research and treatment zone" in multiple
medical institutions, and has also urgently selected a batch of
drugs suitable for post epidemic era treatment of psychological
trauma and stress disorder from related companies. Levostine, an
antidepressant not affecting the quality of life (ED obesity),
Quyou for stress disorder and anxiety, McVeigh for depression
with anxiety accompanied by insomnia, Anyun, a non addictive

and non hangover insomnia drug.

3. Due to the large amount of drug use and the use of environmental
cleaners during the outbreak, drug allergy, fever, cough and
asthma diseases are increasing. We have established "baimin
fever and cough research and treatment zone" in many Internet
drug clinics, such as expert doctors. To establish a standard
diagnostic method to distinguish fever and cough in allergic or
non viral infection. Train doctors how to identify allergic fever
and cough, how to use Bai Wei Qing Bai Xin ha Bai Wei ha to

treat allergic rhinitis and cough, fever caused by cold, etc.

As an R & D digital medical enterprise, the group has established
a database of pharmaceutical research clinical research, big data
marketing and research to ensure our core competitiveness. At
the same time, we use these medical big data and product groups
to establish RWS real world clinical research cooperation with

many Internet hospitals and drug clinics.
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With the implementation of many measures of China's new
medical reform and the arrival of the era of digital economy, we
believe that the company's 15 years focus on three major disease
areas will generate a huge momentum, promote the company's
business growth, and take off again with China! Create greater
wealth value and social value for customers, employees and
shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no significant
investment during this Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As of 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant

capital commitment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the Year, the Group did not carry out any material
acquisitions and disposals in respect of subsidiaries and
associates.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the total banking facilities available to
the Group amounted to RMB1,500,000 (2018: RMB1,500,000),
of which RMB1,500,000 had been utilised and secured by
personal guarantee. The details are set out in the note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not charge on
any of its assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Year, there had been no changes in the Company’s
capital (including ordinary shares and capital reserve) structure.
As at 31 December 2019, the issued shares amounted to about
992,772,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant disclosable event after the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, The Group also provided various other benefits to its
employees. Employee benefits included medical and pension

contributions and share options schemes.

The Group monitored closely the remuneration and fringe
benefits of the employees and rewarded employees in accordance
with the Group’s business performance. In addition, training and
development opportunities for the employees were also provided

by the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group employed 184 and 153 employees as at 31 December
2018 and 2019 respectively. During the Year, staff cost, including
directors” remuneration is approximately RMB14,774,000 (2018:
approximately RMB16,246,000). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, and the prevailing market
price. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, insurance and medical coverage, training programs and

share option scheme.

The Company adopted the share option schemes where share
options to subscribe for shares of the Company have been
granted to the eligible participants of the Group.

The movements in the share options granted under the share
option schemes of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the

Year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUO Xia, aged 54, is the Chairman and an executive
Director. He is also a member of the nomination committee and
GUO is

responsible for strategic planning and development, overall

remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.

management of the Group. Mr. GUO obtained with a Master
degree in science from University of Toronto in March 1997.
Mr. GUO has also completed various approved courses for the
degree of Master of Business Administration in Heriot-Watt
University and the Judge institute EMBA in University of
Cambridge. Before establishing the Group in December 1998,
Mr. GUO had worked for two pharmaceutical companies in
Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. under Johnson & Johnson
and Novopharm Limited under Teva Pharmaceutical Industries
Ltd as research scientist and process development manager,
respectively. Mr. GUO used to be the director and CEO of
Common Wealth Technology Inc listed on NSDAQ and vice
president of All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce
Medical Pharmaceutical Chamber, he also got National model
worker title and The National May 1 Labour Medal, and was
prized as 2005 Excellent creative enterpriser’ in 2005 by BCCC
(got the scholarship for EMBA study in University of
Cambridge).

Dr. SONG Xuemeli, aged 51, is an executive Director. She is also
the compliance officer the Company. Dr. SONG is responsible
for Clinical Research. Dr. SONG graduated from China Concord
Medical University with a Doctorate degree in clinical medicine
in July 1995. She is also a Registered Pharmacist in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group in February 2000, Dr. SONG had
served as general manager of Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical
Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SU Yi, aged 47, has been appointed as a non-executive Director
since 18 May 2016. Mr. SU formerly worked for Fila China
Limited, Shanghai Pharmceutic Group Limited, Venturepharm
Pharmaceuticals (Hainan) Limited, China Health Group Inc. etc.
and engaged as finance director and similar positons. He held
bachelor degree of Hydrolic Engineering from Tsinghua University
and Master Degree of Business Management from Shanghai
Jiaotong Zmanagement and more than 10 years of experience in
pharmaceutic industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. QIU Rui , aged 43, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of the audit committee
since 12 February 2018. He is also a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
QIU graduated from Peking University and holds bachelor
degree of Economics. With 20 years of working experience in
accounting and financial management and Merge& Acquisition.
Mr. QIU formerly worked for PwC and TPG, etc, and founded
several investment funds as the key member. Mr. QIU is the
founding partner of BDStar Capital and the directors of his
invested companies. Mr. QIU is the CFA and the CPA.

Dr. NI Binhui, aged 60, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director and the chairman of nomination
committee, as well as one of the members of audit committee and
remuneration committee since 31 March 2015. Dr. NI acts as
Vice President in Sanofi, and head of external Science &
Partnering-Asia Pacific. Dr. Ni holds a PhD in molecular
pharmacology from University of Toronto under fellowship and
post-doctoral fellowship in Clinical Pharmacology from National
Institute of Health. Dr. NI has over 40 publications in journals
including Science, PNAS and served as adjunct professors in
several universities in USA and Singapore. Dr. NI has over 20
years of healthcare industry experience in the US and
Asia/China. He served in senior scientific and managerial
positions for several top Fortune 500 companies, including Eli
Lilly (being Action Group Chair, US), S'BIO (being Vice
President/ head of Biology, Singapore,) and Covance China
(being General Manager, China).

Mr. ZHEN Ling, aged 54, has been appointed as the independent
non-executive Director since 6 July 2018. He is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a
member of the audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. ZHEN is as global Senior Vice President of
Quintiles and the General Manager of R&D in Greater China
where he oversees the overall service offering and strategic
growth in the region. Mr. ZHEN joined legacy Quintiles in 2007
in the US, and in 2009, he moved to China to take on the role as
the General Manager of legacy Quintiles in Greater China region
including China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Prior to Quintiles, Mr.
ZHEN served as a management consultant in the Life Science
Group of Ernst & Young Management Consulting in the US. Mr.
ZHEN received his Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Science and Technology of China and his MBA
degree from the Kelley School of Business in Indiana University
at Bloomington. He also holds a Juris Doctor (JD) degree from
the Law School of North Carolina Central University and is a
licensed attorney in the state of North Carolina in the US.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present the annual report of the Company and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in

note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.
BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 to 11 of this report. Possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 46 of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
Environmental objectives:

* Achieve the balance between business growth and environmental
protection by improving the operations and practices as well as
encouraging the employees to adopt environmentally responsible
behaviour in workplace; and

* Minimise use and maximise reuse of resources and energy

Social objectives:

e Attract and retain the best people by creating a supportive and

quality workplace; and

» Care about employees’ welfare and satisfaction by encouraging
work-life balance and monitoring and improving employees’
satisfaction
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Approach

Monitored by the Board the Group is executing its environmental
and social strategy and achieving its related objectives through a

series of actions and commitments:

* Comply with environmental and social laws and regulations;

and
¢ Disclose KPIs as measurement of actual results
Environmental and social management system comprises:

* Compliance with environmental and social laws and regulations;
and

* Reporting and disclosure of our performance and KPIs

Measures for the achievement of environmental and
socialobjectives are:

e Data collection, calculation, and disclosure of KPIs

The implementation of environmental and social strategies,
management of environmental activities, and measurement of
achieving environmental and social objectives are monitored by
dedicated managerial staff members and finally by the board for
its overall ESG responsibility.

Communication with stakeholders

The Company holds shareholders’ meetings each year to provide
a platform for the Board and Shareholders to exchange views. In
addition, in order to maintain close relationship with customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders, the Company maintains
communication with the stakeholders from time to time through
visits, conference calls, corporate e-mails and other channels to
listen to their views and needs. The Company’s overall
performance is also reported each year to investors through the
annual report.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating
our environmental and social strategy, defining our objectives,
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. Our key stakeholders
include customers, suppliers, business allies, employees, management
and shareholders. We have discussed or communicated with
stakeholders to understand their views and respond to their needs
and expectations, evaluated and prioritized their inputs to
improve our performance, and finally strived to provide value to
our stakeholders, community and the public as a whole.

2019 EHRE
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

HE_E—AE+BA=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Trét
TR T, AR IR — R0 R, T
JUBRSE AL SN, 0 EBFUAR B A

o ESFBUR AL EE AN K

o P A A B RS R R A B AR
BRI S EEARARE:

o RNTEUR ML G KRG, M

o T B A TRAM R B B A

HEBE AL B B F

o SRR AR, N 3 B RS R

SRR BN LT TR L R BB A
AL R AR A BB, IR i e Rt 2
R 8 R

B 2 AR T

ANFHEFFEA B, REdr G MR A Z R
R BLAN, MBS HER P AR s AR B R D
PR, AAFRIRFEEIESIH. B, AR R HAE
SR s AR ORI, DUBEE O S R AR AR ]
TN AR B IR R i R B

AR 2N EE

) 2 AR 2 B G E M R BRI AL S ok FUE HERE.
Aty H B R ST BOR 2 BB A R 2 A 2R 2R AT
BB BUER. SEBRA. WA HHE MR,
BATCBELA 2 A & i, ARG R [
SRS, S0l Mg BSOS B R EGH,  LABRTH A
AR, MR B RO ad AR Al S B A A%
N LAlEEE.

TEEREBEBERAAIS



2019 FHRE
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

HE-E—AE+-A=+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Based on the stakeholder engagement, we identified issues with

significant environmental and social impact and issues
concerning stakeholders. The results of materiality assessment
prioritized stakeholder inputs and made us focused on the

material aspects for actions, performance, achievements and

reporting. We present below the relevant and required disclosure.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance

with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND
OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

During the Year, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or other
stakeholders.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on page 51 to

98 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the Year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution comprised of capital reserve and contributed surplus of
approximately RMB34,150,000 (2018: approximately RMB34,150,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 99.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company or its subsidiaries have not purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed shares in the current year. Neither the
Company nor its affiliates have redeemed, purchased or
cancelled their redeemable securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:
GUO Xia (Chairman)
SONG Xuemei

Non-executive Director :
SU Yi

Independent Non-executive Directors:

QIU Rui

LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019)
NI Binhui

ZHEN Ling
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required (a) to notify
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Number of shares in Approximate percentage

Number of shares in which interested under Total of the total number
which interested physically settled equity number of issued shares of
Name Capacity (other than under derivatives of shares the Company
) equity derivatives) B
4= SF e e I E ARIRIR R4/ e aags NEICHEA TR
fpilieien HERR AR B St RN
[EPi=d
GUO Xia Beneficial owner
BE 153 75PN 114,701,941 9,150,000 123,851,941 12.48%
(note 1)
GUO Xia Interest in a controlled corporation
£} A EIORERS 590,716,637 590,716,637 59.50%
(note 2)
SONG Xuemei Beneficial owner
REME {5 2PN 636,500 500,000 1,136,500 0.11%
(note 1)
SU Yi Beneficial owner
R {5 Z=DN - 220,000 220,000 0.02%
(note 1)
NI Binhui Beneficial owner
{5 BEEEAA - 100,000 100,000 0.01%

(note 1)

Note 1: These Shares represent the share options granted by the
Company under the Share option Scheme. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Note 2: According to information available to the Company,
349,368,873 Shares were beneficially owned by Winsland
Agents Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. GUO
Xia. 91,915,181 Shares were beneficially owned by Bright
Excel Assets Limited, a company wholly owned by
Venturepharm Holdings Inc., approximately 49.00% of its
shares were held Winsland Agents Limited and approximately
47.63% were held by Mr. GUO Xia. 149,432,583 Shares
were beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.
As such, Mr. GUO Xia is deemed to be interested in the
above companies under the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2019, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of
the Company’s total number of issued shares.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
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FERR

AR T3 B B SB XV R £ 336 ik 2 HLE P A7 B 2 1 8
O RS, RoF—UET T H=1—H, Aa7
MR A RO 2 s S, B AR R E TR
AHER59%E LA ERERT .

TRA LN F A K ARRR B 2 1

Approximate percentage of

Name of Capacity/ Nature of Number of ordinary shares the total number of
Shareholders interests held/ interested issued shares of the Company
JBe o S5/ R Emk NRICEA TR
Haa HE i BB
Winsland Agents Limited Beneficial owner 349,368,873 35.19%
Winsland Agents Limited Interest in a controlled corporation 91,915,181 9.26%
(note)
Bright Excel Assets Limited Beneficial owner 91,915,181 9.26%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Beneficial owner 149,432,583 15.05%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. Interest in a controlled corporation 91,915,181 9.26%
(note)
Winsland Agents Limited §EyU ST ZEDN 349,368,873 35.19%
Winsland Agents Limited P EI T RE RS 91,915,181 (Fffit) 9.26%
Bright Excel Assets Limited i S ZEUN 91,915,181 9.26%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. {57 ZEPN 149,432,583 15.05%
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. R A FIRE RS 91,915,181 9.26%
(Fff)

Note:

According to information available to the Company, 91,915,181
Shares were beneficially owned by Bright Excel Assets Limited,
a company wholly owned by Venturepharm Holdings Inc.,
approximately 49.00% of its shares were held Winsland Agents
Limited and approximately 47.63% were held by Mr. GUO Xia.
As such, Winsland Agents Limited and Venturepharm Holdings
Inc. are deemed to be interested in the Shares owned by Bright
Excel Assets Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there was no
other person who was recorded in the register of the Company as
having interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

Bk

TRIEARN B ERITEER, Venturepharm Holdings Inc2 ¥+ 1]
Bright Excel Assets Limited F{ 7 91,915,181, Winsland Agents
LimitedFF A #149.0006 BB A7y, FBESELERFA#)47.63% HIBL
I, Winsland Agents LimitedFHVenturepharm Holdings Inc 4 #54%
SEAREESFORFA 1 Bright Excel Assets Limited Y B A7 HEAE HE SR o

B LSO E SN, IR IR A= H, AR
BRCMECEr, MM A A LA A T By S BBy b
R RS MO BB 55X VAR 52 M 55300 TR ) AR A mI B
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
SIGNIFICANCE

IN CONTRACTS OF

During the year ended 31 December 2019, except for the continuing
connected transactions (details of which are disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 9 December 2019 in www.hkexnews.com)
entered into between the Group and related companies, at which
a Director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant interests
in these companies, no other contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

INTERESTS IN

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transaction” and
note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements, there is no
contract of significance between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 30 June 2015 (the
“Adoption Date”) by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme is a share
incentive scheme and is established to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions and potential contributions which the Eligible
Participants (as defined below) have made or may make to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to utilize their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to
attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an on-going
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

The Eligible Participants of the Share Option Scheme are
determined taking into account the Company’s operations and
financial situation from time to time and the contributions and
potential contributions which the Eligible Participants have made
or may make to the Group, and in accordance with the rules of
the relevant stock exchange(s), the laws and regulations of the
relevant jurisdictions and the relevant provisions of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”).

The Board may at its discretion grant options to the following
eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any director, employee (whether full time or part time
employee), consultant or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any interest
(the “Invested Entity”);
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(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
any director, employee (whether full time or part time
employee), consultant or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
any Invested Entity; and

(iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
(whether full time or part time employee), consultant or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of Shares available for issue under the
share options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company must
not, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the adoption date
(excluding, for this purpose, Shares issuable upon exercise of
options which have been granted but which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
of the Company),
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained.

other share option schemes unless

As at the date of this report, the outstanding number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 80,927,166
Shares, representing approximately 8.15% of the total number of
issued Shares.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), the total number of securities issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.
Where any further grant of options to an Eligible Participant
would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such Eligible
Participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the
relevant class of securities in issue, such further grant must be
separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with
such Eligible Participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole
discretion, there is no requirement of a minimum period for
which an option must be held before such an option can be
exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible Participant to the Company
on acceptance of an offer of an option, which shall be paid within
21 days from the offer date.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of: (a) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as
shown on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.
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The Share Option Scheme shall commence on the date it
becomes unconditional and shall continue in force until the tenth
anniversary of such date.
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JBe SRR R A R R R HR A, AU R H R
ERLECEE

Number of share options
HARES
Name or Exercise Balanceas | Granted | Exercised | Lapsed Cancelled
category Price at 1 January | during the | duringthe |during the | duringthe | Balance as at31
of grantees (Hk$) | Date of grant Exercisable period 2019 Year Year Year Year December 2019
ZHE S FTHE(H BT H AT WEEJUE| RERT | AETHE | Aok | AR | R R
R (%) —H—H FZA=+—H
Directors
E
GUO Xia 7 April 2009 | 7 April 2010 to 6 April 2019 (Note 1)
HE 0435 | 2009-04-07 | 2010-04-07%2019-04-06 (Fff7E 1) | 858,000 - - 858,000 - -
30 June 2015 Note 2
0.45 2015-06-30 Ik 2 9,150,000 - - - 9,150,000
SONG Xuemei 7 April 2009 | 7 April 2010 to 6 April 2019 (Note 1)
R 0435 | 2009-04-07 | 2010-04-07%2019-04-06 (FffE 1) | 720,000 - - 720,000 - -
30 June 2015 Note 2
0.45 2015-06-30 Ik 2 500,000 - - - 500,000
SUYi 30 June 2015 Note 2
/g}:%)f(‘ 0.45 2015-06-30 [{ﬁﬁ 2 220,000 - - - 220,000
NI Binhui 30 June 2015 Note 2
AL 045 1 2015-06-30 Bk 2 100,000 - - - 100,000
Former Directors
HifEH# S
LOTTER Mark Gavin 30 June 2015 Note 2
LOTTER Mark Gavin 045 1 2015-06-30 Wik 2 100,000 - - 100,000 - -
WU Shouyuan 30 June 2015 Note 2
BT 0451 2015-06-30 Bt 2 100,000 - - 100,000 - -
ZHANG Xin 30 June 2015 Note 2
ki 0.45 2015-06-30 Ik 2 100,000 - - 100,000 - -
Employees of the Group
In aggregate 7 April 2009 | 7 April 2010 to 6 April 2019 (Note 1)
N 0435 1 2009-04-07 [2010-04-07%2019-04-06 (i 1) | 1,982,800 - - 1,982,800 - -
30 June 2015 Note 2
045 | 2015.06.30 B2 5,020,000 - - 1,500,000 3,520,000
Total
fast 18,850,800 - - 5,360,800 13,490,000
Notes: BpRE

1. These options are under the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 23 May 2003.

2. These options are under the Share Option Scheme. The options
may not be exercised within one year from 30 June 2015. The
Option will vest (i) to the extent of a maximum of 40% of the
offered shares on 30 June 2016; (ii) to the extent of a maximum of
70% of the offered shares on 30 June 2017; and (iii) to extent of all
offered shares on 30 June 2018.

Save as disclosed above, no other share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year had the Directors
and the Chief Executive (including their spouses and children under
18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted, or exercised any
rights to subscribe for the shares (or warrants or debentures, as
applicable) of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or
is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of
the directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company had, together with the
management and external auditor of the Company, reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation for independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The independent

non-executive Directors have confirmed that they are independent.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 81% of the Group’s sales. The largest customer
accounted for approximately 30% of the sales of the Group.

During the Year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 32.06% of the Group’s cost of service. The largest
supplier accounted for approximately 7.76% of the cost of the service
of the Group.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns 5% or
more of the issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, a number of the connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions between the Company and the
related companies are also disclosed according to the requirements of
chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The details of connected
transaction and continuing connected transactions have been
contained in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 28 July 2016, the Company and Venturepharma Group (China)
Corp. (the “Connected Customer”) entered into the service
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
services, including post launch market research, medical sciences
service and medical market service (the “Services”), through
entity(ies) being member of the Group which provides the services
(the “Service Provider”) to the subsidiaries of the Connected
Customer within the PRC (the “Connected Customer Subsidiaries”).

On 28 July 2016, Mr. GUO Xia is a significant shareholder of the
Connected Customer. Mr. GUO Xia beneficially owns approximately
63% interest in the total number of issued Shares and is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the Connected Customer
is a connected person of the Company and the transaction

contemplated under the service agreement constitutes a continuing

connected transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group possesses relevant capability to provide the Services. The
Services provided by Service Provider is necessary to Connected
Customer Subsidiaries and the cooperation between the Group and
Connected Customer Subsidiaries will be favourable for the Group to
further expand its recognition in the field and enhance its operation in
terms of technical knowhow and will provide stability in terms of
revenue to the Group.
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The terms of the service agreement were determined after arm’s
length negotiations between the Company and the Connected
Customer. The Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) consider that the terms of the Service Agreement are on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The annual caps for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018
were RMB62,515,736 and RMB 129,779,458 respectively. The term
was from 15 August 2017 up to and inclusive on 31 December 2018.

The service agreement reached between the Company and the
Connected Customer on 28 July 2016 will be renewed for three years
for which the expiry date is 31 December 2021.

The annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the years
ending 2020 and 2021 are RMB15,000,000, RMB43,000,000 and
RMB55,000,000 respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company, after they
reviewed the connected transactions shown in note 26 to consolidated
financial statements, considered that during the Year, such connected
transactions are:

(1)Related to the general and normal business of the Company;

(2)Entered into in accordance with the terms of the general
agreement or in terms of the terms of the agreement between the
Company and the independent third party; and

(3)The terms of the agreement concluded are fair and reasonable in

terms of the owners of the group.

During the Year, the actual amounts of the continuing connected
transactions paid under the agreements did not exceed the respective
aggregate annual cap as previously disclosed in the circulars and the

announcements of the Company.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2019 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Board confirms that the auditor has issued an unqualified letter
confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 as being in order.
Copy of the said letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the Year are
set out in note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements of this
report.

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 26(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of this report constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules and accordingly are subject to the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions as disclosed in notes 17 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report constituted exempt
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules and accordingly are exempted from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions as disclosed in notes 17 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements of this report are not regarded as
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report which on pages 28 to 46 of this report, the
Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules during the Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited. A resolution will be submitted to the
annual general meeting of the Company to appoint Zhonghui Anda
CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

Following the resignation of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as
auditor of the Company on 20 December 2018, Cheng & Cheng
Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the

vacancy.
Following the resignation of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor of
the Company on 16 April 2019, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
GUO Xia

Beijing, the PRC, 10 March 2020
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted by the Company
emphasis a quality board, transparency and accountability to
shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the Code for the year ended 31 December 2019, with the

exception for the following deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated. However, the chief
executive officer of the Company has not yet been appointed.
Currently, the day-to-day management of the Company’s business is
handled by the executive directors and senior management, who take
the responsibility to run the Group’s business and to implement the
Group’s strategy so as to achieve the overall commercial objectives

of the Company.

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Under the code provision E.1.2, the
chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting. He
should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend.
During the Year, the annual general meeting of the Company was
held on 28 June 2019 (the “AGM”), Mr. GUO Xia (chairman of the
Board) and all the independent non-executive Directors (the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committee) did
not attend the said AGM to answer questions of the shareholders of
the Company due to other prior business engagements. However,
Mr. GUO Xia and the independent non-executive Directors have
appointed the other attended Director, Dr. SONG Xuemei, as their
representative at the said meetings to answer questions of the
shareholders of the Company. The Company will put its most effort
in encouraging and ensuring the Directors including executive and

non-executive Directors to attend the general meetings in the future.

RULE 5.05(1) OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent

non-executive Directors.

The Company has fulfilled the requirement on the number of
independent non-executive directors of the Company as required
under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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RULE 5.28 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, every listed issuer must
establish an audit committee comprising non-executive directors

only. The audit committee must comprise a minimum of 3 members.

The Company has fulfilled the requirement on the number of
members of the audit committee as required under Rule 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company also had made specific enquiry of all Directors
and the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS HEHE
The overall governance structure of the Company is set out below: A FEERHABATH T -
The Board
HHY
Chairman appointed by the Board
AR E R
2 Executive Directors
2L BT
1 Non-Executive Director
U= o

4 Independent Non-Executive Directors among which 1 resigned

B AT L B

Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee
FEHTEY RAZEE Hiz B &
QIU Rui (Chairman) NI Binhui (Chairman) ZHEN Ling (Chairman)(Appointed as chairman on 20 June 2019)
e (1) TRMHE (F25) HdE () (R oFE— A A HETHTR)
LOTTER Mark Gavin GUO Xia GUO Xia
(resigned on 20 June 2019) Ey=] E
LOTTER Mark Gavin 564
R =T AFEAH A HEHT) QIU Rui QIU Rui
s i
ZHEN Ling
LiiEss LOTTER Mark Gavin NI Binhui
(resigned on 20 June 2019) {5 M
NI Binhui LOTTER Mark Gavin J&4E
{5 MM (RN H A HEHE) LOTTER Mark Gavin (Former chairman)
(resigned on 20 June 2019)
ZHEN Ling LOTTER Mark Gavin 264 (Ri=EJ%)
Lk RZF—AFEANH = HEHE)

The Board members during the Year and up to the date of this SEN R AR A H B e B

report are:

Executive Directors: PUTHESR:

GUO Xia (Chairman) R (F)
SONG Xuemei KE
Non-executive Director: AT

SU Yi kR

Independent Non-executive Directors: L AVIEISS I G
QIU Rui e

LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019) LOTTER Mark Gavin (82— 43 H 1 HEFHT)
NI Binhui A5 M i

ZHEN Ling Ll
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There are no relationships (including financial, business, family

or other material or relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. Four regular Board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals have been scheduled for 2019.
The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the Articles.

Board papers are circulated not less than three days before the
Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions
on matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The Company
Secretary shall attend all regular Board meetings to advise on
corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting and
financial matters when necessary. Directors shall have full access
to information of the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in establishing the
meeting agenda, and each Director may request inclusion of items
in the agenda. Minutes of the board meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by Directors.

Each of Mr. Guo and Dr. Song has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
on 30 June 2018. Mr. Su has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of 3 years commencing on 18 May 2019.
Dr. Ni has entered into a service agreement with the Company for
a term of 3 years commencing on 31 March 2018. Mr. Qiu has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years
commencing on 12 February 2018. Mr. Zhen has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing
on 6 July 2018. Each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of each of their service agreements, each

Director is not entitled to any director’s fee.
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During the Year, the Board held four meetings. The attendance
records of the aforementioned four Board meetings are set out

below:

FREBRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

WE-E NETZAST—HILT=fA, EHEER
(TP P o T B T

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the Year.

ENEH S EFEE BN
Attendance no.  Attendance rate
HH R AL 2
Executive Directors HTEE
GUO Xia 2 4/4 100%
SONG Xuemei REM 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FHTES
SU Yi B 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B TEE
QIU Rui s 4/4 100%
LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019) ~ LOTTER Mark Gavin (j4 ==L~ H - HEFHE)  2/4 50%
NI Binhui {5E A i 3/4 75%
ZHEN Ling Hdg 3/4 75%
Attendance of individual directors at
general meetings during the Year
A L N T
Attendance no.  Attendance rate
Executive Directors BITES
GUO Xia Y] 0/2 0%
SONG Xuemei ey 2/2 100%
Non-executive Director HTES
SU Yi R 0/2 0%
Independent Non-executive Directors AV |
QIU Rui s 0/2 0%
LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019) ~ LOTTER Mark Gavin(JA = Z— 7 F~H -+ HEHT) - -
NI Binhui i M e 0/2 0%
ZHEN Ling Tdg 0/2 0%

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent
confirmed that they are

Non-executive Directors have

independent.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, and ensures that all keys and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and

constructive manner.

Currently, the Company does not have Chief Executive Officer.
The day-to-day management of the Company's business is
handled by the executive directors, who take the responsibility to
run the Group's business and to implement the Group's strategy so
as to achieve the overall commercial objectives of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development during the Year. The Company has also continuously
updated Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and responsibility of the Directors and the business of the

Group in the following manners:
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Attended Seminar

or Briefing/ Read Material
HRE B S el R/ Bl

Directors

Executive Directors YiTEHE

GUO Xia HE vV
SONG Xuemei RE vV
Non-executive Director IERITEE

SU Yi %54 V
Independent non-executive directors ERVE Sy

QIU Rui i Vv
LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019)  LOTTER Mark Gavin (# ~F— %A H —+ HFHT) V
NI Binhui fiem i vV

ZHEN Ling W
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee,
to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules 5.28 to 5.33. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual reports,
interim reports and quarterly reports (b) to discuss and review
with the audit of the Company on the scope and findings of the
audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
provide advice and comments to the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of
the Audit Committee have been and are:

QIU Rui (Chairman)

NI Binhui

LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019)
ZHEN Ling

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed, assessed and
commented on the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2018, the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the three months ended 31 March 2019,
six months ended 30 June 2019 and nine months ended 30 September
2019, respectively. It has also reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and internal audit
functions of the Group, the continuing connected transactions and
the policy on anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing.
The preparation of the consolidated results is in compliance with
applicable accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company and the requirements of the Stock Exchange, and

adequate disclosure has been made.

The Group’s unaudited consolidated quarterly, interim results and
audited consolidated annual results for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosures have been made.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The
attendance records of the aforementioned Audit Committee

meetings are set out below:
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REBAEEN, FREEGGRTNKE®, FREAS
Jk B2 B s m T

Attendance no.  Attendance rate

Members A=

QIU Rui (Chairman) st (EFD 4/4 100%
LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019) LOTTER Mark Gavin (jd —~&—7 4 H -+ HEHF) 2/4 50%
NI Binhui {5 MR 3/4 75%
ZHEN Ling (appointed on 20 June 2019) Wit (R ZF—NFEANH A HZEE) 2/4 50%
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RAZREY

The Company has established a nomination committee (the ANTFIENRZIRAZ BE, WM BGEM LRI TmET

“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition by reference to the board diversity policy (including
but not limited to the gender, skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent
non-executive Director. The Nomination Committee comprises a
majority of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of

the Nomination Committee have been and are:

NI Binhui (Chairman)

GUO Xia

QIU Rui

LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019)
ZHEN Ling (appointed on 20 June 2019)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
The attendance records of the aforementioned Nomination

Committee meeting is set out below:
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AU R (T8

R

har

LOTTER Mark Gavin (7~ E— /A H 1 HEHF)
kg R F—AFANHA A HZT)

REEFEEN, IRATEESRT T — s, Homs s
H 2 SR BB AR . IR N EE R AT B R
FEiE . AT EEREHEIRATETER SN
R

Attendance no. Attendance rate

Members BE HUREREL R

NI Binhui (Chairman) im0 ) 1/1 100%
GUO Xia HE 1/1 100%
QIU Rui ks 1/1 100%
LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019)  LOTTER Mark Gavin ( & =E—AFENH 1 HEHE) 171 100%
ZHEN Ling (appointed on 20 June 2019) s (R = E—NENH =1 HEE) 1/1 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and
delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee and the Board had also
reviewed on 31 Dec 2019 the structure of the Board and is of the
opinion the Board consisted of members with different gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills and knowledge, which met the requirements

under the terms of the Policy.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses the Board
composition on behalf of the Board and recommends the
appointment of new Directors, taking into account a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, industry and regional experience, and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant and applicable from time to time.
The Company will also take into consideration factors based on
the Company’s business model and specific needs from time to
time in determining the optimum composition of the Board. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates may bring to the Board. The Board’s
composition (including gender, age, length of service) will be
disclosed in the corporate governance report of the Company (the
“CG Report”) in its annual report.

MONITORING AND REPORTING
The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the CG

Report, on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives,
and monitor the implementation of this Policy.

36 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.

FREEHE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EFERALITTHBR

A FEPRAA T o A 2 U BUR, B T IS B
HEFr G B 2 TT A LR T R & 2 S RE T PRI 7
, W BORIT FRE THEZRIESZ AT, A% ER
BREFGIIR E-NFE=ZH F—Hma EFe
i, W sEREERAREERN. Fl. S REEE R
BOERCER. BORER R AR, B ERELIN
BORME L BE -

REBOTRHE R R, AN Rl SRR H %
TC R SR HE B F R A A T A PR A B B T 2K

feZ B AR R Ehoes MO o Sl N BRI A
JE, ERREARAIEG . FE SUEREFET R K.
TOEREER . BORE RIAR. 1736 M R B LA K IR AR 01 5
ZARTT AR, MR R I . RGP A R
FELT LA NMEA 2 J5CAN A6 7% B8N 38 IR LA BLR 1 52 20
JEUN 8 R B 22 UL R 2

WEREE

AN FIMRE— R Y 2 o UBUR R E N AR EARRRA
PR AR U MHE R KRR, BiRE. MR
AR, LUK # S R REA IRl 2y A M0 ) - AT
IR ZR o A W] E o B R A ARSI, D N
WRIBA A ] 2 ER N EREHE AR R . Rk
TE AR T N A8 S 20 o R A Y i R AT EOR .
TR ERAL (BAETER . A IRBAE) AR
EREEE PSR RRE ([ CRESEERREY 1)
Wiz

BRI

AT BETEREHRAEE RSN ERE KL T
PCBURG AL 28R, I SR BRI T -



FEREEHRE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTOR’S NOMINATION POLICY
Objectives

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to
the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to
shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or

appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The Nomination Committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or

the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

The Nomination Committee shall ensure the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

e character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o accomplishment and experience in the business from time to
time conducted, engaged in or invested in by any member of

the Group;
o commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

o requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

o Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board; and

e such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. These factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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Rigorous review is applied to assessing the continuing
independence of Directors having served for over 9 consecutive
years, with attention to ensuring that they remain independent in
character and judgement, and continue to present an objective
and constructive challenge to the assumptions and viewpoints
presented by the management and the Board.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as Directors and to the public
disclosure of their personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for
election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

Nomination Procedures

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.
For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation. The Board shall have the
ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the biographical information (or
relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company pursuant to its
constitutional documents, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of director at the general meeting.

Re-election of Directors at General Meetings

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring director including
his/her attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine
whether the retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set

out above.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) according to the relevant provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of reference. Its
primary duties are (a) to make recommendation to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) to determine the
remuneration packages on individual executive Directors and
senior management; and (d) to make recommendations to the

Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration committee is formed by an executive director
and three independent non-executive directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the members of

the Remuneration Committee have been and are:

ZHEN Ling (Chairman) (Appointed as chairman on 20 June 2019)
LOTTER Mark Gavin (Former chairman)
(resigned on 20 June 2019)
GUO Xia
QIU Rui
NI Binhui

During the Year, meeting was held by the Remuneration
committee to discuss and review the remuneration policies of the
Company, to review and make recommendations with respect to
the remuneration of Board members for approval by the Board
and to made recommendations with respect to the remuneration
of the newly appointed Directors during the year for approval by
the Board. The Remuneration committee has adopted the
operation model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management. The attendance of member at Remuneration

committee meeting during the Year is set out below:
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Members Re R VOB Hips

ZHEN Ling (Chairman) (Appointed as chairman on 20 June 2019)  ¥5 (£f8 ) (R 18714 fﬁ?/féfr ) 11 100%
LOTTER Mark Gavin (Former chairman) (resigned on 20 June 2019) LOTTER Mark Gavin (#IEFE ) (ZF-AEAAZTHRHE) 11 100%
GUO Xia BE 11 100%
NI Binhui T 1/1 100%
QIU Rui st 1/1 100%
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Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THEIR
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to 50.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3 of the Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company in accordance with the written terms of reference
adopted by the Board on 28 December 2019. The Board has the
following duties and responsibilities for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company:

¢ to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

¢ to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

* to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

¢ to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

e to review the Group’s compliance with the corporate

governance code as set out in the Listing Rules and disclosure in

the corporate governance report in annual report of the Company.
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During the Year, the Board held one meeting to review the
policies and practices of the Company relating to the Code.
Details of the attendance of the related meetings of the Board are
as follow:

2019 EHRE
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

BHEZE—AE+-A=1+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

N, ERERIT T R, b o w EsE A BB
RN WS AR Sk LR R R

Attendance no.  Attendance rate

H R L R
Executive Directors THE
GUO Xia (Chairman) #BE () 1 100%
SONG Xuemei RE 0 0%
Non-executive Director JEITHE S
SU Yi B 0 0%
Independent Non-executive Directors B AERITEF
QIU Rui Lk 1 100%
LOTTER Mark Gavin (resigned on 20 June 2019) LOTTER Mark Gavin (A =F—A4FEANH =+ HEHF) 1 100%
NI Binhui (e 1 100%
ZHEN Ling i 0 0%
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT PR B B B
The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound 2 5 & £ 20l (R AN 42 3] 1) JRL G/ B0 A P 3 B s R e A M 4
and effective risk management and internal control system. The M AR . AELEBIARN . B LEE L LR AR 2

Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group’s operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. During the Year, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant to conduct a review on the internal
control system of the Group. The risk management and internal
control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to
ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the
present risk management and internal control system of the
Group are satisfactory. The Board is of the view that the system
of risk management and internal control adopted for this Year is
sound and effective. The Group does not have an internal audit
function and the Board is of the view that there is currently no
need for the Group to have this function. The situation will be
reviewed from time to time. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operating systems or in achievement

of the Group’s business objectives.

g, e EE— ]:&Pﬁ/r\—“"fﬂl TZHABZEERE, 1
TR FUE T IR AR, R Bl S AL, L
T PR A% 2 B R S S AN AR T T R 2R AR T
Fmte AR, AR TSI SR T AEE NN
TR IS R A TR B R PR R RS A R
ARG AR . HF RSN SR G ARG
Biok, BOAREEEA 2 B R B R . &
TR T REUHH N BR A 2 S B R R R 4 R R
ALEEN RN TG, fHE R AER Rl AT
BRI IEIRE . TRV AR R A B S . LB i B
TP ER 2 ] R B A0 8 B RS a8 PR At S BRI
A PRI AR PR PR A AR A0 A Pt sl S A T S H R SR

TEEBREBDAFRAAMHN



2019F ER &
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

HE-E—AE+-A=+—HIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

PROCESS USED TO IDENTIFY, EVALUATE AND
MANAGE SIGNIFICANT RISKS

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee
identifies the risk of the Group and deciding on the risk levels and
the Board shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the
risks that are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic
objectives. Taking into consideration the risk response, i.e. the
necessary risk mitigating measures, the relevant departments and
business units shall be assigned to implement the risk
management solutions in accordance with their respective roles
and responsibilities. The identified risk together with the risk
response will be recorded at the risk register and subject to the
Board’s oversight.

MAIN FEATURES OF RISK
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

MANAGEMENT AND

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group include the establishment of a risk register
to keep track of and record identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control

procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Group for
identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. The judgement of the risk is mainly
determined in accordance with the likelihood of occurrence and
consequence of occurrence of the risk, which can be categorised
into 3 classes, classifying the degree of risk impact as: Minor (1),
Moderate (2) and Significant (3), and the probability of
occurrence of risk as: Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3).
The risk degrees reflect the level of management’s attention and
risk treatment effort required.

PROCESS USED TO REVIEW THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
THE RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS AND TO RESOLVE MATERIAL INTERNAL
CONTROL DEFECTS

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, and
in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting
periodic reviews of the Group’s internal controls. During the
year, the Company engaged an external independent consultant
to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems in accordance with the

requirements under Code Provision C.2 of the Code.
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The Board and Audit Committee were satisfied that there had
been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems being reviewed after
implementation of recommendations of the internal control
defects reported by the external independent consultant.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Board has established a policy for handling and dissemination
of inside information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The
Inside Information Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver
to the disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures. Management
of the Company takes all reasonable measures from time to time
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent breach of any
disclosure obligations. Employees are required to promptly bring
any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information to the
attention of the Senior Management, or their delegates, who will
notify the Board timely and accordingly, in which case and in the
event that there is evidence of material violation of the Inside
Information Policy, the Board will decide, or designate
appropriate persons to decide the course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the Company,
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to 50. During the
Year, auditor’s remuneration for audit services was approximately
RMBG680,000. Save as disclosed above, there was no other
non-audit services assignment undertaken by the external auditor
during the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
distributing detailed documents to the Directors prior to the
Board meetings to ensure that the Directors are able to make
informed decisions regarding the matters discussed in the
meetings. And all Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. The company secretary of the Company, Ms. LAM
Yuen Ling Eva (“Ms. Lam”), is delegated by an external service
provider. The external service provider’s primary contact person
at the Company is the financial controller of the Company from time to
time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company according to the provisions as set out in the Articles
and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. A Special
General Meeting (“SGM”) can be convened by a written request
signed by shareholders of the Company, stating the objects of the
meeting and deposited at the Company’s head office at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit B, 19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The detailed procedures vary according to whether
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special
resolution, or whether the proposal relates to the election of a
person other than a Director of the Company as a director. The
procedures for shareholders to convene and put forward
proposals at an AGM or SGM (including election of a person
other than a Director of the Company as a director) are available
on the Company’s website or on request to the Company
Secretary.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong

Kong or send email to ir@venturepharm.net.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
AGM or SGM.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance of
the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the AGM or SGM providing a
forum for shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchanging views with the Board; (iii) key information of the
Group available on the website of the Company; (iv) the
Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong serving the
shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and (v)
corporate information and the Ar ticles are made available on the

Company’s website.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the
Board aiming at providing the shareholders and potential
investors with ready and timely access to balanced and

understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The
Board is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner
and on a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders
through the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports

and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing Shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public.

Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit B,
19/F, Times Media Centre, 133 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the Year, there was no amendment on the constitutional

document of the Company.
DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on 28
December 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”). The Dividend Policy
aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions

relating to the Company.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board may consider declaring
and paying dividends to the Shareholders out of the Company’s
distributable funds. Such declaration and payment of dividends
shall remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board,

subject to the requirements of all applicable laws and the Articles.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. In deciding whether to propose or declare a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount and means of payment, the
Board shall take into account the following factors of the Group,
among others:

(a) financial results;

(b) cash flow situation;

(c) future operations and earnings;

(d) capital requirements and expenditure plans;

(e) interest of shareholders;

(f) any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

(g) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may/may not
be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or
period as:

1. interim dividend;

2. final dividend;

3. special dividend; and

4. any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Company may declare and pay dividends by way of cash or
scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board shall endeavor to strike a balance between providing
return to the Shareholders through the payment of dividends
whilst retaining adequate reserves as the Group’s working capital
and for the Group’s future growth. There can be no assurance that
dividends will be proposed, declared or paid by the Company in
any particular amount at any time or from time to time.

The Board will review from time to time the Dividend Policy and
may exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as the Board
deems fit and necessary.
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ZHONGHUI

Independent auditor's report
To the shareholders of China Health Group Inc
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Health Group Inc. (the“Group”), and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 98, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in

compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statement section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balances of trade and bills receivables of
approximately RMB58,557,000 as at 31 December 2019 are
material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement and
is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits
and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history

with the customers;
- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing aging of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;
- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade and bills

receivables is supported by the available evidence.
OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information
is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standar
ds/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P0O6353
Hong Kong, 10 March 2020
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REVENUE
BREA

Cost of services

A 1A

Other income

HAbA

Administrative expenses
T M

Staff costs

BTRA

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
£l

Finance costs

s H

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

KRR B

chome tax

FrfSi5

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR
AR R AR UL 2R

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
AR B At A £ A AR

- Equity shareholders of the Company
- ANTIERTAE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (RMB cents)
TRER

- Basic

A

- Diluted
- i

The notes on pages 55 to 98 form part of these financial statements.

55508 H 2 A I BRI AR S IR 0 .

2019 2018
“EJUE —F— )\
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i NRHETIT NRHETIT
5 63,216 59,606
(9,751) (7,240)
6 32 143
(6,097) (8,532)
(14,774) (16,246)
32,626 27,731
7(a) (172) (63)
7 32,454 27,668
10 (4,662) (4,504)
27,192 23,164
27792 23,164
27,792 23,164

11
280 23

2.80 2.33

T EEREBEEFRA AL
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ARERIFARI AR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note 2019 2018
B TERIJUE ZE )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#ETIC AREETIC
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ENN U 13 2,172 3,301
Right-of-use assets i I 14 2,595
4,767 3,301
CURRENT ASSETS HEgE
Contract costs AR AR 16 25,176 11,108
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EMSCER VR e 24 17 58,557 41,399
Trade deposit paid TR 18 1,800 800
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TRATOR Fo b R 19 12,473 3,181
Cash and cash equivalents B RS EY) 8,459 9,004
106,465 65,492
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables, other payables and accrued charges & 5 IEAIFIH, HoAl AT H0E =12 H 20 38,006 29,916
Contract liabilities &AL 16 52 367
Lease liabilities HEAM 21 88 -
Tax payable TR A B 12,076 7,822
Bank borrowings HUTER 22 1,500 1,500
51,722 39,605
NET CURRENT ASSETS EFREEE 54,743 25,887
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ~ #&EBREE & 59,510 29,188
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E 2 =L
Lease liabilities FEA G 21 2,530 -
2,530 -
NET ASSETS FEE 56,980 29,188
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A\ THESREE B L
Issued capital JR AR 23 88,673 88,673
Reserves (4] (31,693) (59,485)
Total equity AT 56,980 29,188

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 98 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 10 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

GUO Xia
B
Director

The notes on pages 55 to 98 form part of these financial statements.
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SONG Xuemei

Director
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Attributable to owners of the Company

AN TIHEA MR
Issued Share-based Special Capital Statutory  Statutory enterprise ~ Accumulated Total
capital « paymentreserve » reserve s+ reserve s+ reserve s expansionfund s  losses *  equity
e B f B FeRlfE  EAREE  REAK HERE St At
Sk BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AT I AT I ANRFETIT ARWMTIC ARWETIT ARHETIT ARMETIE  ARWBETIC

At 1 January 2018

A UE—H 88,673 3,863 6,039 6,231 7,158 6,986 (113,146) 5,804
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
ARAE R B 2 2 40 ) : ) ) ] ) P16 216
Equity settled share-based transactions
ERR AT LA AR 2 BERE S B . 220 - - - - - 220
Cancellation/lapse of share options
SIS ST ) (o ) ) ’ ] 103
A iations
ﬁg%toprla ions i ) . R 2462 ) (2,462)

7
At 31 December 2018
e R A=A 88,673 3,920 6,039 6,231 9,620 6,986 (92,281) 29,188
At 1 January 2019
WoE—HE—H—H 88,673 3,920 6,039 6,231 9,620 6,986 (92,281) 29,188
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
A B A A R AR . - - - - - 27.792 27,792
Cancellation/lapse of share options 026
L ) (1020 ] ] ] ] * ]
Appropriations
fﬁpjfj’\ prt - - - - 3,118 - (3,118) -

At 31 December 2019
WU =10 88,673 2,894 6,039 6,231 12,738 6,986 (66,581) 56,980

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position.

* LAl AR A BT & O i A R P A B DA S -

The notes on pages 55 to 98 form part of these financial statements.
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11'17- [=] }Eﬁ/}ﬁg%
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2019 2018
“EFRNEFE ZF )
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥TIC ARMETIT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEE)
Profit before tax Gl 32,454 27,668
Adjustments for: A
Interest expenses AR H 68 63
Bank interest income SRATH SN 9) (45)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Pt - YE. WS Mt 1,130 1,044
Depreciation of right-of-use assets s M- R 142 -
Unpaid lease liabilities AR E A (223) -
Lease interest FHEFLE 104 -
Equity settled share-based payment expenses VIR 2 46 S5 PR S A - 220
Operating profit before working capital changes B A BRI R 2 33,666 28,950
Increase in contract costs A E A B I (14,068) (8,690)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JREVAL B2 B 2 N A EE A 14 (17,158) (22,508)
(Decrease)/increase in trade deposits paid JEAHRG RN () A (1,000) 800
Increase in prepayments and other receivables TR R A G A 3 (9,292) (2,367)
Increase in trade payables, other payables JEATE G MEATHRR e FHIY
and accrued charges e 8,090 6,838
Decrease in contract liabilities =GR ik (315) (15)
Cash generated from operations REEEEANES 77) 3,008
Income tax paid TATRAGR (408) (150)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities RETEE) (TR AN B SR (485) 2,858
Cash flows from investing activities REEY
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEECANENE . R M €8 (1,594)
Interest received I RIISUIOAN 9 45
Net cash generated/(used in) from investing activities BB/ ) &2 38 8 (1,549)
Cash flows from financing activities RETEE)
New borrowings BB T X 1,500 1,500
Repayment of loans BRI TEK (1,500) -
Interest paid AR (68) (63)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities BRI B (TR R 2 BL& 3R (68) 1,437
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents & RBES BRI A8 (545) 2,746
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ENMBERBEEEY 9.004 6,258
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EXRBERBEFEY 8,459 9,004
Note: FpRE:
Liabilities arising from financing activities include bank borrowings — Bl&1H#)E £ 1 A BRI TERNHE AR, BT LB
and lease liabilities. No reconciliation of liabilities arising from — &iiind#@hib, HE _F—NFEL _F—/\F+_H=+—

financing activities as, besides of above cash flow movements, there

are no other changes or movements for those liabilities during the

year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The notes on pages 55 to 98 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Health Group Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business is at Boda Building, 28 Beiqing Road, Life Science Park,
Zhongguancun, Changping District, Beijing, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”).

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2019. HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting
Standards("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year and

prior years.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases which had
previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under HKAS 17

“Leases.”

The Company has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Company has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and

financial position.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated. RMB is the
functional currency of the Company and the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the

Group is set out below:
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.
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The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a

loss of control represents the difference between

(i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value

of any investment retained in that subsidiary ;and

(ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any

related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
if this

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

non-controlling shareholders even results in the

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the

Company.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates (the “functional

currency”).
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(b) Transactions and balances in each entity's financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

(¢) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s

presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(ii) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of property, plant

and equipment are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost
less any impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant assets are available for use.
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Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the
Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use
assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings over the lease term of 1 to 20 years
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$39,000).

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
investments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following

category:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following

conditions:

(a) the assets are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are
the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“life time
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables or if the credit risk
on that financial instrument has increased significantly since

initial recognition.
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If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables and contract assets ) and
contract assets has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of life time
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses
that result from default events on that financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or

loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included

as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period to match them with the costs they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are recorded
as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a

significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is

satisfied over time if:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of

the product or service.
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Other income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.
(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as
a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at
the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non

market-based vesting conditions.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither

the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of

which the other entity is a member).
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(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the

Company or to a parent of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group’s various
lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be

aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment and no segmental
analysis is presented.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in

which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless

the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the

reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting
period or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to

the consolidated financial statements when material.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in

which such estimate has been changed.

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is determined with reference to the
fair value less costs of disposal. Where the fair value less costs
of disposal are less than expected or there are unfavourable
events and change in facts and circumstance which result in
revision of fair value less costs of disposal, a material

impairment loss may arise.

(c) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
The Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

(d) Measurement of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Group estimated the right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities based on the terms of the rental agreements and the
Group's incremental borrowing rate. Estimates are required in

determining the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA FI- SR8 4

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the &40 FB4% I8 AR ALAG T ARG I E 1 N5 — 3
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.  FUHt o AHE E 1) S BESE T L P B S04 B8 BB 8 S0 SR 4
The Group is principally engaged in the provisions of clinical — BERF, THILAEFIEE BBl % 5821525 2E 1 1) 261 1
research services, real-world clinical research, medical science  FEfHiT, ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ i T2 % A A [ ) S R 2 T
liaisons, medical marketing programs which aims to bridge the — AJEARIGI AL, ACEE [E] 1) i AR PO 2 il 2 A B [ 1Y) 3
gaps between the clinical and commercial phases of product Fffﬁﬁ?ﬂ{f’ﬁﬂz nﬂq AN, R, R AR
development in the PRC and its revenues are all derived inthe PRC {5 «F#EBABH A HERD &5\ 9%, AL UG BE—12E%0
for both years. These services are subject to similar business risks .

and resources and are allocated based on the view of the whole

Group’s benefits in enhancing the value as a whole rather than on

any specific unit. The Group’s chief operating decision-maker

considers that the performance assessment of the Group should be

based on the profit before taxation of the Group as a whole.

Therefore, only one single segment information are disclosed

under the requirements of HKFRS 8.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:  EF{[H B EAZE I HEATF

2019 2018
SENE B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEFTE  ARMETT

Provision of post launch market research, SRt bt BB AR S

medical and medical market services (the “PM services”) BRI FE . BRI A5 RN B 2 35 s 55,360 42,363
Provision of contracted pharmaceutical TRAL G X045 i BHEE I 7,784 234
development services (the “PD services™)

Provision of contracted clinical research AL ARG IR 58 RS 72 6,186
services (the “CR services”)

Sales of drugs technologies RN A - 10,377
Other medical services HABBESER BN - 446

63,216 59,606

Other medical services include registration, application and testing  H A BERARFAW AL S FEM, B as AR o
services.

70 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.



BRI R Mt

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:
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B PR A A TR 1 7048

2019 2018
ZERAE 2R\
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TIC  AR®ETITC
Major products/services FEE R
Provision of PM services POt BT BRSBTS
e BRI A TN B T 4 s 55,360 42,363
Provision of PD services PR AR 8E T BAEE s 7,784 234
Provision of CR services TR G KRR AR T IR 72 6,186
Sales of drugs technologies P B B - 10,377
Other medical services HAth P& SEARB A - 446
Total Al 63,216 59,606
Timing of revenue recognition e N TR R P
At a point in time {1 IR [T B 63,023 58,941
Over time — BRI A 193 665
Total Exil 63,216 59,606

Provision of PM services, PD services, CR services and other
medical services

The Group provides PM services, PD services, CR services and
other services to the customers. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant services are rendered, no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the services rendered
and the respective amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Some of revenue from PM services is recognised when the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligations of a service contract can be measured reasonably,
revenue from the contract and the contract costs are recognised
using the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred to date to
the estimated total contract costs for the contract. This method
provides the most reliable estimate of the percentage of

completion.

When the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligations of a service contract cannot be measured
reasonably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that is expected to be recoverable.

The customers pay the contract prices to the Group according to
the payment schedules as stipulated in the contracts. If the
payments exceed the service rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

Services rendered to customers are normally made with credit terms

of 30 days. Deposits received are recognised as a contract liability.
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A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the payment
is due.

Sales of drugs technologies and patents and trademarks

The Group sells drugs technologies, patents and trademarks
derived from its research to customers. Sales are recognised when
control of the products have been transferred, being when the
products are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products and the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30
days.

A receivable is recognised when the services are rendered as this
is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because

only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years, each
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group are as follows:

B TSR & Mt
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EARBUIRFE Rp A aR IR AR, i 2 (RS, $HE
FEIEORPERYT, e KB 2 B AR S — BURE I o

SHEZER BN B XA

ALRB G B ATOT ST PR (028 i By, SRR R ARG %
, W AR IR A AR I, RIEDE AR AR R T 1%
, NFAEATRER B % P s i U IR B B R AT 6, L
B PR T 35 5 (o FH R it A RE AR IR AR N

11 5 P SR AL A AR5 08 5 LA 0K 2 MR

AT 1) 4 AR A A SR ] 1 A I [ B A, Ay
e AE AU AR AR T (A B IR s A A Rk -

PEETEE RN, B0 AR 10%3 AL,
FEFIANR

2019 2018
ZEIUF e NS
RMB’000 RMB’000
N RHETIT N RHETITC
Provision of PM, PD and CR services AL ET R BRI BEIRI T
and sales of patents and trademarks VBRI A FI B RE T I %, G HIZER
to Customer A PREEIRT , AHOERRIT IR, 88
R, HRI RIS R A 17,876 18,923
Provision of PM services to RO LT B R RIS BRI 5T
Customer B P BRI 4 FH BT G B4R % 1B 14,528 21,760
Sales of drugs technologies to Customer C Py EEE RN G R P C - 7,547
Provision of PM and PD services to AL 1R B TR IR LU S AR R
Customer D FEIRBAGE D 18,868 -
6. OTHER INCOME 6. FE A
2019 2018
BRI e AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHETIT N RHETIT
Bank interest income SRFTRLRICAN 9 45
Others Hthy 23 98
32 143
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

7. BRI

2019 EHRE
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

HE_E—AE+BA=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

FRBERTIa A SRR T 21 S THARIE R

2019 2018
E—JLAF e SN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHTFE  ARMEFT
(a) Finance costs (W BEH
Interests on: FBESZH
Lease interest FHEFLE 104 -
Bank borrowings = 68 63
172 63
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments as (b) B LA (B FERF8
disclosed in note 8) Weis 2 w4
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits a1 N HAGER] 11,710 13,388
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans SEIMEIGR IR A F T Rk 3,064 2,638
Equity settled share-based payment expenses RERRAE A LA A9 2 EEE5E By 1)
(note 25(c)) B (B [25(0)]) - 220
14,774 16,246
(c) Other items (o) HAthIH H
Auditors’ remuneration TS T 680 680
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Pres—wsk. s FIes 1,130 1,044
Depreciation of right-of-use assets I —fd IR GE 142 -
Minimum lease payments under operating lease RUBHHEEN] - BARHE X
in respect of buildings Ry B en - 171
Cost of services NeFs A 9,751 7,240

T EEREBEBERAATI
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8. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Director’s emoluments disclosed pursuant to GEM Listing Rule and

section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as follows:

B IR et
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. T4

RN R AR E TR A ARG 6
383 ER T

Directors’ fees

Heefitd
2019 2018
“HFNE SR
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHEETIC ARMETC

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Hrdz . UM AEF

2019 2018
eSS KiS— AN
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIC AT

Contributions to
defined contribution

retirement plans Share based payments

PRI PR SN Uy By B At
2019 2018 2019 2018
THENE CFE TR UE U
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000

ARHETIC ARBT O ARMTIC ARWTT

Total
-
EL
2019 2018
TERUE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTIC ARWETIT

Executive directors

fTES

Mr. GUO Xia
SRk

Dr. SONG Xuemei _ - 66
R

33 90 - 6 99 349

Non-executive directors

Mr. SU Yi

Independent non-executive directors

By TR

Dr. NI Binhui
{GAM R ) )

Mr. LOTTER Mark Gavin
(Resigned on 20 June 2019)

Mr. LOTTER Mark Gavin
(A ZZJUEAH ZHHEBHD)

Mr. QIU Rui
st ) B

Mr. ZHEN Ling

(Appointed on 6 July 2018)
=k

[ AN VA PANAL. =53]

Dr. WU Shouyuan

(Resigned on 12 February 2018)
RFLEAE

(A=Z—/\EZ A+ HEHD)

33 90 - 111 99 454

There were no arrangements under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil). During the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of

office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five (2018: five) individuals with the highest
emoluments, Nil (2018: one) individuals is director whose
emoluments is disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining five (2018: four)
individuals are as follows:

o.fiE Bl B e M A &

AEE AL (RN sfn) R FHMA L E oA
(& —\AE i) #iE, W ME CERIE, B
NSfL (&N afn) RN L 2 B AT R

2019 2018

“EOE S SR

RMB’000 RMB’000

NS ARHETIT

Salaries, bonuses and other benefits g L& NIHARER] 874 899
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans FEMABERR IR AR 71 82
Equity settled share-based payment expenses RERR A LUB AR R AR5 5y I BH S - 4
951 985

The emoluments of the five (2018: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the band of HK$Nil to
HK$1,000,000 in both years.

10. INCOME TAX

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represents:

FEsfit s B AL (22— /UF: 4fn) B2
V1,000,000 7CALBT N -

10. Frf8f

(a) A G HHR 2 S A AR YR R 25 2 B :

2019 2018
SR —F )\
RMB’000 RMB’000
NBRHEFIT YN e

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax AREFRIE - PRAOEFER
Provision for the year AAEAREA 4,662 4,504
Over-provision in respect of prior years FEAF T % - -
Income tax expense FlSFE 7 H 4,662 4,504

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the Company and
its subsidiaries is calculated based on the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the People's Republic of China (“EIT Law of the PRC”).
The Group is subject to a tax rate of 25%. Some subsidiaries of
the Company are eligible for tax incentives due to their location
and industry. These subsidiaries are subject to a preferential tax
rate of 9%.

Taxation of other overseas subsidiaries are charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

F A S8 A B v I S AR AR e M), MR —F —JLAF
ARG B (—F/EE ) .

I ] R 2 ] B N LA B £ S P A B AT P R
s «hIEN RSB SERTSREy (LIRS [irfs
Bk ) WA AREEE —F—/SEE AR S25%. i
7 B ) T T S A 5 A L ST 7 S B R
REAATIE, PIESEEATR, HBHET9%.

FL At SN a5 2 SIHEAR B A S AT A B R PR A

TEEREEBBERAATS
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

B TSR E Mt

NOTES 710 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b) LB FRERFFL A G -

2019 2018

e —

RMB’000 RMB’000

N RHETIT N RHETIT

Profit before taxation BRECATF) 32454 27,668

Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the Heos96it AR 1 IR G A &2 e F e

applicable tax rate of 25% 8,114 6917

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible HbrlEE AR R 2 490 365

Preferential income tax rates applicable to subsidiaries AT AR AT R (4,528) (2,110)

Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised WA TR s 2 586 184

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised O AR IR B - (852)

Income tax expense FIER 4,662 4,504
(c) Deferred tax not recognised: (c) AR IR HERIEE 2

At 31 December 2019, the Group has not recognised deferred tax H AR REREA A5 R R A 2 RO, BRI =B —L

assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
RMB1,055,000 (2018: approximately RMB7,918,000), as it is not
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
unused tax losses can be utilised in the relevant tax jurisdiction. The
unused tax losses will expire within five years from the end of the
respective reporting periods.

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of approximately RMB27,792,000 (2018: approximately
RMB23,164,000) and the weighted average number of
992,772,000 (2018: 992,772,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise the Company’s share options because
the exercise price of those options was higher than the

average market price for shares for 2019 and 2018.

12. DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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Ft—H=+—H, ZIK%EII bt AT s TR AR I Y
lﬁﬁé KN RH1,055,00000 (& —/\4F: ) A RH57,918,000
o ARE A S S AR R TN E.

11 AR

(a) TFREA R

IR 2 5 A DA 2 W R M 7 48 S 5 3 )
N E27.792,00000 (& —/\4E: % AN EH23,164,000
JC) MARMEE N Z EE T IIREE 4 %0992,772,000 (-
F—)\4E: 992,772,000) K.

(b) BRBHET &L

IR Ry LE SRR O A T (A A — R — LR = —
JE SSRGS, AR B as B RSN Tl
AN T B SIRE

12. R

AP EFEEAIMN T IFET A B R EF N
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2019 EHRE
2019 ANNUAL REPORT

HE_E—AE+B=+—HILEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019

13. 1% BB MR

Leasehold Machinery and Motor Construction
improvements equipment vehicles  1n progress Total
Visebis T Mias Mo RH EERLRE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE ARMETIC ARMTIC ARMET T AREETT
COST: A
At 1 January 2018 RoE—)\F—H—H 5,672 18,926 645 - 25,243
Additions i - 126 - 1,468 1,594
Transfers i - 1,422 - (1,422) -
At 31 December 2018 and P E— )\ H=+—H
1 January 2019 M- E—NFE—H—H 5,672 20,474 645 46 26,837
Additions i - 1 - - 1
Disposal R - (11) - - (11)
At 31 December 2019 IoENFET A= —H 5,672 20,464 645 46 26,827
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z3Hi#:
AND IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 January 2018 pE—\F—H—H 5,662 16,272 558 - 22,492
Charge for the year AT 5 1,020 19 B 1,044
At 31 December 2018 RoE—)\FEHA=+—H
and 1 January 2019 “ENE—A— 5,667 17,292 577 - 23,536
Charge for the year AAEEE - 1,130 - - 1,130
Disposal JEH - (1) - - (11
At 31 December 2019 RoZ—NFE+-H=+—H 56067 18,411 571 - 24,655
CARRYING AMOUNTS: R E:
At 31 December 2018 A e = I 5 3,182 68 46 3,301
At 31 December 2019 REENETZH=1—H 5 2,053 68 46 2,172

TEEREEERRAT7
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Disclosures of lease-related items:

B TSR E T

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14, G E

BEAH A7 B SR A B

2019
“FE I
RMB’000
ARAST L

Right-of-use assets

EFIRE R

2,595

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the

Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

AR BIBL G, M AR H T T

2019

—E A

RMB’000

AN RHETIC

Less than 1 year —ERN 223
Between 1 and 2 years VFRIAF 223
Between 2 and 5 years A F54F 670
Over 5 years IS 2,960
4,076

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets IR E R T8 142
Lease interests FHECRE 104

Total cash outflow for leases

A ET B3t th AR -

The lease is entered with a related company, in which a director
of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant influence.

The Group leases various buildings. Lease agreements are
typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 20 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.
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15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. Bt AE]

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries at 31 December ~ # |k ~F—JLE+ 0 =+—H A5 =5 E 2 71 3

2019 are set out below: T
Proportion of ownership interest
FHEERILE
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and paid effective Heldby the Heldbya Principal
Name of subsidiary and business up capital interest company subsidiary Activities
MR A TSR S0 ATA ELE TR AEE AR o7 TEE
PS¢ =il RIAHE ®E BE AR
Ventureph: British Virgin Islands -
enturep 'arm n“ls ) legm sands US5100 100% 100% Investment holding
Lflb(?ratones (BVI) ( “BVI") 100355t Pl
Limited (“VP(BVI)”)
Venovo Pharma Us$l1 100% 100% - Investment holding
US Inc (“VP(US)”) BVI 12550 ) ey
Inactive
VPSCRO Group Inc. US$1 100% 100% - fiEAS
(“VPSCRO”) BVI IESH
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
b g e 4 The PRC US$200.000 pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; PM services
e ] ’ . 100% - 100% and PD services
HREARAT] I 200,000557C
TFE M BB R CIRGE SN N B A N, BT M B A
SE Rk RANIER KA B 2 AT T, S 2 3
RIS G RW ST, bl BEELER R IIRS . BRI 5E 3%
BTG AR R BEIRE T1T BMs B 5 5 4 i DR B s
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
JEETE Al The PRC US$200,000 PM services and PD services
SR, . X 100% - 100%
AR s 2000003 N o N
WETE M BHBEEE s RIREE S MG I EE b BF TS M BB A=
B RIREEN G A h 2 BT R R s 4E a2 48
BTN BRI TS ; B B R RIS BRRBTE. B
BRI A Bt T 458 RS B 4O B B B B IR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
S AE A ER The PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
jt/'ﬂ'%ilsﬁjltﬁ e\ US5200,000 100% _ 100% pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
ER AR AR Hk 200,000257C PM services and PD services
BRI B 4 s RIRNEE S B 5 R WRSE R BH M)
E NP S TS e TR d T T Tea
RIS MG RIS bl B S R B BRI oS B8
SR A R B T RS B 5 2 i B R IR
Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
g A The PRC development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
Av s 4:,55'3% € “ US$865,000 00 00 pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
B EE A TR H [&815) 865.000257C 100% - 100% PM services and PD services

WEIE R BHEEEE s RIREE i Mo B e BF 98 M BB A4
Bl RORBENRN MG G L BT DL 5 B 2 2
TR MR, iR PR RS . ERRETS. 18
BRI AR T 358 R B HO B B B IR

TEEREEBERAATI
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Place of Particulars of

incorporation issued and paid
Name of subsidiary and business up capital
MBATIEHE [T ELEA TR

BB SR

BRI TR et

NOTES 710 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Proportion of ownership interest

BEAtEERLE

Group’s
effective
interest
AEE
®E

Held by the Held by a
company subsidiary
AATE] HEA
®H A

Principal
Activities

TEEY

BN AR gER) The PRC RMB1,000,000
BARAR I R1,000,00050

100%

- 100%

Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
PM services and PD services

WG M BB SR G ORGSR L N, WFE R B3 A1
BEfh . RIRBER DA TREE I 2 BT MR 2l 26
BT MG RO TS ;B B R R BRI B
B Bt 353 RO B ) B A BB IR

MR B A The PRC US$360.,000
RN i 360.000257C

100%

- 100%

Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
PM services and PD services

WG B PR AR AL . RIRAE N M B s ST S S AR
ZE it RORGE b M B IS il 2 B W R s, 4 2 4
R gE M B RBE S, BT BRI . BRRBESE.
SRR R i MR B B N B AR

PETRETT 4B The PRC US$600,000
ik T AHIRAF] I 600,000

51%

- 51%

Inactive
o
Eliesy

P 4 The PRC RMB$1,000,000
S R AE$1,000,0007T

100%

- 100%

Research and development of drugs, natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological transfer of and services for the research and
development of biodrugs, natural drugs and synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamics and clinical research of drugs; Provision of
PM services and PD services

WG R PR AR . RIREE S R g s EOU PR B
Bl ROREEN BB IREE A Z BTG S s 4 i 2 48
ST BRI, b TR DR RO  BRURWTS. B
SR A SRR T IR B RO B L T

R SR B The PRC RMB$2.000,000
PR BRIt 2,000,000

100%

- 100%

Inactive
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16. CONTRACT COSTS AND LIABILITIES 16. & A R A E

Disclosures of revenue-related items: NG =R OE T

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018 As at 1 January 2018

HEZF JUE BEZZ /) HEZZ/\F
+=H=+H +ZH=+H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANRHETIT ANR¥EETIT
Total contract costs
HAE A A 25,176 11,108 2,418
Total contract liabilities
AR A 52 367 382
Contract receivables (included in trade receivables)
& AR (& B0 IEER) 49,557 36,899 18,122

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations DA T ARARIE T E TR B (BN, TERDIELAT 7
unsatisfied at end of year and expected to be recognised as TERR AN -

revenue in:
2019 2018
e R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEFIT ARHEFIT
-2019 - CEUF - 3318
- 2020 - SERTEF 7,520 133
7,520 3451
Year ended 31 December HE+_H=+—HIt4E
Revenue recognised in the year that was included in SERIEE AR AR RN
contract liabilities at beginning of year 367 382
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: KRAEF A FRE M F A EREME

2019 Contract liabilities 2018 Contract liabilities

“ERJUFEARAR —ER - )\ FaRARE
RMB’000 RMB’000
PN NRHETFIT
Increase due to operations in the year
AR 32 367
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue
ARSI eon 5
A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in B 7] 2 A 3R 2 B R 58 4 AR 1B Lk o i i s S AR A
exchange for products or services that the Group has transferred to a Flo
customer.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer G AR A SR [ 7 & e el IR =, B
products or services to a customer for which the Group has received BPREWEIEE (UM ESE) -
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

TEEREBEEFERAFS
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Costs to fulfill contracts with customers, mainly service fees to third
parties are capitalised as contract costs because the Group expects to
recover these costs. Capitalised contract costs are amortised to profit
or loss when the related revenue is recognised.

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

BRI TR et

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B PR A F RSO, £ B TN MR <,
ﬁ/\é%l%l%ﬁ B InhE oA, I E AR A A, EA
A R A E RS AR B S 22 1 25

17. FEW R R R 8

2019 2018

TEJUE —F—)\UE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AT AT

Trade receivables B 5 MR 49,557 36,899
Bills receivable I 9,000 4,500
58,557 41,399

Included in trade receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2019 is the trade receivable from a related company of
approximately = RMB15,716,000  (2018:  approximately
RMB14,817,000), which is unsecured, interest-free and bears
The related

company is an entity in which a director of the Company, Mr.

normal commercial terms as other trade debtors.
GUO Xia, has significant influence.
(a) Ageing analysis

The Group normally grants 30 days (2018: 30 days) credit period
to its customers since the invoice date. The bills receivable as at
31 December 2019 are non-interest bearing bank acceptance bills
and are aged within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue

balances are reviewed regularly by management.

As of the end of the reporting period, the aging analysis of trade

BT I WO B R B B — EARE AN R
15,716,000 (—F—/\4F : £ A K7H514,817,000) 2 B 2 EWGK
T 05 B O IS T 2 AT, 4SS R B AR D R 2
SR BB A BRI AN T R S A RE A X
SN FIEATE TR,

(a) HRHS AT

AEME R THE 0K (% /UE: 30H) [FEY.
RER-NEF A= H, BRCR RS SRR T
MESE, Iﬁ@ﬁ“ﬁwr I8 H P90 A58 1 R ok s ) AR A

BECHOE, A k A LR E I
TP 91 B oy SO T M AL SRR 2 e, 1% SR EL Y

and bills receivables, based on the goods delivered or services Ren B R, AT
rendered date and net of allowances for doubtful debts, is as
follows:
2019 2018
ZERJUE TR\
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANR¥ETIT
Within 30 days 30HA 55,328 21,337
31 to 60 days 31E60H - 2,524
61 to 90 days 615290H - 2,078
91 to 365 days 91%365H 3,160 15,391
Over 365 days EHib365H 69 69
58,557 41,399
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(b) The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9
to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the expected

20196 EikE
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(b) ALEEEMN «EBWHERS AR TN IR
Jrik, MM BT A R 2 MRS TR A e <, $2 T
WEEHEE. B THERFPNFESRL, BURORSIREL

credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on I 1) A B R B el (ORI B R B0 A T o 4 . TR (S R IE
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The AL TG B
expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking
information.
Within 30 31to 365 Over 365
Current days pastdue days past due days past due Total
HAr  saisoHm @iz H wE At
£365H 1365 H
At 31 December 2019 BoFEEF A=
Expected loss rate AL EPRES 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount JEBCHIE (N BETIT) 46,328 - 3,160 69 49,557
Loss allowance HEJERT N BEETI0) - - - - -
At 31 December 2018 e E A=
Expected loss rate TEHIE IR 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Receivable amount JEMCHIE N BRETIT) 36,537 - 293 69 36,899
Loss allowance BRER N REETI0) - - - - -

(c)Amount due from a related company

The amount due from a related company, disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are
as follows:

(c) Bl m R RH

R «FIBATEG 5383(1) (d) I IE B
FHWTT

o ) HEH

At 31 December 2019

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year

AR B R AR A

At 31 December 2018

—EZ—HE R\ 2019 2018

‘f‘;ﬁ =+—H TEH=AH —E A =)\

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHTIT ARHETIT ANRHETIC PN S

R LBE G ) A IR A W] 15,716 14,817 15,716 14,817
The amount due from a related company is unsecured, interest-free B Mg j ) JEEMAC I g SR i N B A B ) 5
and bears normal commercial terms as other trade debtors. The — % A —kK=H1EH r% [BE 3OOl NP/ i ==l

related company is an entity in which a director of the Company, E‘;ﬁ‘ﬁéliﬁ R TIER

Mr. GUO Xia, has significant influence.

T EEREBEBERAAE]
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18. TRADE DEPOSITS PAID

Trade deposits paid represented guarantee deposits paid to
customers in connection with service agreement signed for the

provision of PM services and will be refunded upon satisfaction of

contract terms.

B TS RE T
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18. T EHHE

TN ST G BN & P AR i B S AR s TR
IS SR A A B AR T 105 5 B R T S 5 5 ) A

19. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. TEATEX R HoAth BEWGER
Details of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as  YE (< 2 Az oAb EUC /A0 -
follows:
2019 2018
- A2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIC ANRHTIT
Prepayments TEAEK 11,193 2,256
Value-added tax recoverable AT [ S (B A 281 281
Advances to staff for business trips T B T ETRE: 411 440
Amounts due from directors TN F 0 82 81
Other receivables HoAt R IR 506 123
12,473 3,181

(a) Amounts due from directors

The amounts due from directors, disclosed pursuant to section

383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

(a) VA 2 H R

MEEE CATUEG 5383052 & FATRBEIT

Maximum amount
outstanding during the year

h=ig = E-“{&fc fr

Asat 31 December 2019 Asat 31 December 2018 WA R

NE I RE )\ 2019 2018

+—-H=1+—H +—-H=+—H —E—JUE A )\UE

Name of director RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HHPE AL PN T ANRHETIC PN T NRHETTT

Dr. SONG Xuemei 82 81 82 81
KEMHEL

The amount due from a director is non-trade related, unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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20. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUED CHARGES
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20. EAT R R FABREATSOR R R A

2019 2018
Note =
. RMB’000 RMB’000
NRHETIT NIRRT I
Trade payables B A (a) 6,844 1,286
Litigation claims payables JEAE AR A S 1 (b) 12,895 12,983
Accrued staff costs, welfare and benefits JEEF B TR, R 2,182 2,436
Value-added tax and sundry taxes payable  JEA (B A HAFT I 4,937 3,207
Others HoAly (©) 11,148 10,004
38,006 29,916
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or 45 % 5 A HAB JEAF R IEA 14 P S A mli e AN
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.
(a) Ageing analysis (a) FRE ST
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade AR5 1 K &2 5) A UE 2 BEBA 488 25 H IR0
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
2019 2018
ZERIJUE e AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRHETIT ANR¥ETIT
Within 30 days 30HW 58 1,001
31 days to 90 days 31H%Is0H 2,680 102
91 days to 365 days 91H %365 H 3,880 140
Over 365 days 365K 226 43
6,844 1,286

(b) Several subsidiaries of the Company are defendants in various
lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business. The
amounts provided represented the outstanding claims payables to
plaintiffs according to the respective court judgements.

(c) Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December
2019 is the lease payable to a related company of approximately
RMB223,000 (2018: Nil), which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The related company is an entity in which
a director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant
influence.

(b) A S5 [ 19 1) 5 B Jog 2 ][RI S R T el iy o RN I
ARG B R IR eI R B A S A T

i fE

(o) EEBE—F—JUFE+ = H =+ H B H A AT
, ELAE AT — IR B A FIRREAT , S840 25223,0007C A
R (R /U ). AT MRR, T E AT e
ESREE. A r R A W E R E A, HARf
HEALENER.

T EEREBEBERAAE
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21. LEASE LIABILITIES
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A HEAE

Present value of

Lease payments lease payments

FHEAK FHE A BUE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZERF e eeANED ZEF TR\
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N BRHETIT NRHETIT N RHETIT N RHETIT
Within one year 14EN 223 - 88 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive &8 24E 5] 4554F 893 - 403 -
After five years SR 2,960 - 2,127 -
4,076 - 2,618 -
Less: Future finance charges P A H A (1,458) -
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEBE 2,618 -
Less: Amount due for settlement I 1248 H RS
within 12 months MR (RIREI A
(shown under current liabilities) 1) (88) -
Amount due for settlement after 12{[ H &4 R0
12 months 2,530 -

At 31 December 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was
5.22%. Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Lease liabilities are related to leases with a related company, which
a director of the Company, Mr. GUO Xia, has significant

WE019F12H31H, FHYBBREHFIR45.20% . FIFLE
AT HBIEE, TR G T A SR

MR KB A PN AR, AR (L,
FRESEA, HIAERTE.

influence.
22. BANK BORROWINGS 22, $R1TERR
2019 2018
—FE U —F—)UE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANE¥TIC ANE¥TIC
Bank loan SRITEK 1,500 1,500

The loan was unsecured, interest-bearing at the Loan Prime Rate of
Beijing Bank plus 91 points and was guaranteed by a director of
the Company, Dr. SONG Xuemei. The effective interest rate
during the year ended 31 December 2019 was 5.22% (2018:
5.22%) per annum and repayable within one year.
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23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23. AR
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) T BURERR AR R 0 A ) B A ) S T A

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each AN B 5 Gl & 2503 2 ST RS ACHRS i 2 ] 2 RSO A%
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BRERT SRR N o AL T HIRE RS TR A AF A B2 A AR 2 T
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in ZEHFHERSIT

the Company’s individual components of reserves between the

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Share-
Based
Payment Capital Contributed Accumulated
reserve reserve surplus losses Total
[ty Bt BAt N REtiEiR it
AT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
PN N e ARHETIE NRHETIT ARMETIT ARMTT
At 1 January 2018
W E—)F—H—H 3,863 6,139 28,011 (154,829) (116,816)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
ARAF R R A S AR - - - (1,560) (1,560)
Equity settled share-based transactions
RERR BT LU 2 SR 5y 220 - - - 220
Cancellation/lapse of share options
SO e e (163) - - 163 -
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019
A= T UE A 3,920 6,139 28011 (156,226)  (118,156)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
YNGR S YN E L - - - (1,959) (1,959)
Cancellation/lapse of share options
SGH e e (1,026) - - 1,026 -
At 31 December 2019
P E—IUE A= 1—H 2,894 6,139 28,011 (157,159) (120,115)

T EEREEBFRAAE
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(b) Issued share capital

(b) CEfTRA

2019 2018
ZE A =& )\4F
Number of Number of
Shares’000 ~ RMB’000 Shares'000 ~ RMB’000
MEdeoo0  ARIETIT drooo  ARMETIT
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ~— E\ 31 T4 AR5
At 1 January and 31 December A—H—HEK+ZH=1+—H 992,772 88,673 992,772 88,673

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Special reserve

The special reserve represents the differences between the
nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI) (a holding company
of the other members of the Group prior to the group
reorganisation) and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued pursuant to the group reorganisation.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the additional contributions
made by the shareholders of the Company and the additional
contributions made by the non-controlling shareholder of the
subsidiary of the Company prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. It also includes the premium of the issued
share capital of the Company.
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(iii) Statutory reserve and statutory enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the Articles of Association
and Board regulations of the subsidiaries of the Company,
each of the subsidiary is required to transfer 10% of its net
profit, as determined under PRC accounting regulations, to a
statutory reserve until the fund aggregates 50% of each of
the subsidiary registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of any dividends to shareholders.
The statutory reserve shall only be used to make good of
previous years’ losses, to expand the subsidiary’s production
operations or to increase the capital of the subsidiary. Upon
approval by a resolution at a shareholder’s general meeting,
the subsidiary may transform its statutory reserve into share
capital and issue bonus share to existing shareholders in
proportion to their original shareholdings or to increase the
nominal value of each share currently held by them,
provided that the balance of the reserve fund after such issue
is not less than 25% of the registered capital. Moreover, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC can
transfer certain percentage of their profit after taxation on
voluntary basis, as determined under the PRC accounting

regulations to the enterprise expansion fund.

(iv) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the net assets of the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant
to the Group Reorganisation.

The Company’ reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise the capital reserve and contributed
surplus. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of profits or
other reserves of the Company. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the Company must be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business
immediately following the distribution of any dividends.

24. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the relevant local authorities whereby the
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to make contributions to
the Schemes at rates which range from 0.4% to 19% (2018:
0.4% to 19%) of the eligible employee’s salaries during the
year. The relevant local government authorities are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payables to retired
employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2019

(iii) ¥ E AT NG BB RS

WP RIAER AN R AR R, AN FHEEZ
fratH R A TR A 10 % M AR E A E, B2
it P < O SRR S TA AR A TR REPE AR 50 %0 2 1k 1
FEREN TR R P IRBE TR AT - 355E
AT PO IR R A AR A AR A
FERCE . BUEIALN IR BA . EIRRCRE A, AL
A RIIEE AT B, A0 FUA R A F B
I TALR T RE G BOR, sl e S5 BOR B A 1 &
BRI, MR TR, ik E AR S AR AT
TRFEMFE AR 25%. LAk, AEREA e A RILAIE
LT BT A A g 2 ] v At L BB AR AR 2 AT P 47
AL B RS

(iv) BER B

LTI BRI A 712 PR R AT
R e TAEL T LA V3 2 ) T P2 228

A F AT YR T ISR 2 A e 48 Y Al e S T
o MIRAN FIHIARER, BN BUEH A AL Wl
FCA el A P T (BB BT ) o ESL, ARG 2
B2 Ak, AN RAERRIREBE 2%, REASAT
BT S L=

24. & RBHABRFHE

TR P B AHRA 2 TR AR A B P s 1 B 8
NI SRR T SR S A e R ATERE (TR
), Wk, PEEARIRENERSERER S
EH0.4%E19% (—F—/\H: 04%F19%) [AFFEE
G AH R T RS AR IR e B B AR IR &
BT
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25. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 20
June 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including
directors of any company within the Group, to take up options at
predetermined considerations to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options are as follows:

B H S RE M

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. HERR(EAS LU 2R EE 3L 5

RATIRZFRFRZAFANH T HRG— SRR #®
B, Al #AERAE I B AR 2 R B (ET%Z!K
%@Eﬁ?ﬁ:ﬂ/\74$$«) FRAATR I RE LA A A 7]

oo B IEBRER THA ARBIEA L 7] ﬁﬂxﬁxffiz
ﬁﬂo

() TAGEHR F 2 AR i SARA T (S S PSR 2 Ak B e PR A

2019: — T4
Cancellation/

At January 2019 Lapsed during the year ~ At 31 December 2018
Grant date Exercise price  Note AR AR A E— 4
g ARE AT B F—H—H e o] +—H=+—0
7 April 2009 HK$0.435
—EEAEN A+ H W43 51 (1) 3,560,800 (3,560,800) -
30 June 2015 HK$0.45 .
B~ T DAV R ol = = R (i) 15,290,000 (1,800,000) 13,490,000

18,850,800 (5,360,800) 13,490,000
2018: — & — )\ 4E-
Cancellation/

At 1 January 2018 Lapsed during the year At 31 December 2018
Grant date Exercise price  Note AR — ) TAAAE I AT )\ 4E
FHEFI T Bt fF—H—H EI A +=A=+—H
7 April 2009 HK$0.435
—EEHENAHH W43 541 () 3,668,800 (108,000) 3,560,800
30 June 2015 HK$0.45 .
—E-RAEAASTH O #EEsl (i) 16,110,000 (820,000) 15,290,000

19,778,800 (928,000) 18,850,800

Notes: i
(i) These options were exercisable within the period commencing OZFERETTA - FZFAFENA LA E =T —FENA

LY

from 7 April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The options were lapsed on 6
April 2019.

(ii)) These options are exercisable in three trench with the
maximum percentage of options exercisable with the periods
commencing from 30 June 2016 to 29 June 2017, 30 June 2017 to
29 June 2018 and on 30 June 2018 being 40%, 70% and 100%
respectively. The options are valid and effective until 29 June
2025.
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(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options that are exercisable are as follows:
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(b) W BERE 2 Wi A hRE-F- X047 (B 0 T

2019 2018
ZEF N NS
Weighted average Number of Weighted average Number of
exercise price HK$ options exercise price HK$ options
TIREF-1 IR B H IR O H
T T
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0.447 18.850.800 0.447 19.778.800
e H—H E AT
Cancellation/lapsed during the year 0.44 (5.360.,800) 0.448 (928.000)
T A R ek
Outstanding at the end of the year 0.45 13.490.000 0.447 18.850.800
R A=A H AR T
Exercisable at the end of the year 045 13.490.000 0.447 18.850.800

A=A HA A TE

The option outstanding as at 31 December 2019 had their exercise
price of HK$0.45 (2018: HK$0.435 and HK$0.45) and a weighted

average remaining contractual life of 5.49 years (2018: 5.32 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an input into this
model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the
binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions 2015

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.209 - HK$0.288

Share price HK$0.43
Exercise price HK$0.45
Expected volatility (expressed as 89.29%
weighted average volatility used
in the modelling under Binomial
Lattice model)
Option life (expressed as weighted 10 years
average life used in the modelling
under Binomial Lattice model)
Expected dividends 0%
Risk-free interest rate (based on 1.788%

Exchange Fund Notes)

A TR —IUEF T H = BT S 2 A A vt
Weasqill (BN W3 sl KBRSl ROniESE
YRR T AR 5. 490 (& —)\UE: 5324F) o

(c) MBChEZ o Fufi Bt

S Y TR T 42 32 2 I 2 VAR5 2275 e 5 L RO
VAPINIENITE e ) e e ) /A I DR R B
Rt B B A0SV I TR AT
T AT E A IR s

WL =2 2 PR R ARG TE—HAE
FAFHE H 2 A ol HEWE20.911l1 - HETEF28 811l
Ji g HEEa3 ]
TT{EAE a5l
TEIE R (DA I A 89.29%
TE NECERT NP4 3 IR 220K )

IR AR I] (LA TR S A X, 10 4F
NEEGE T AIE TR B EEE R )

TEAGIE R 0%
IEESEF 2 (LIRS 5 A k) 1.788%

TEERSEEERS AN
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The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no

market conditions associated with the share option grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, equity settled
share-based payment expenses related to services provided by
the directors of the Company and other employees of
approximately RMB111,000 and approximately RMB109,000
respectively were recognised in profit or loss arising from
options vested during the year.

26. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
wholly related to amounts paid to the Company’s directors, as
disclosed in note 8.

(b) Other related parties transactions

In addition to the financial arrangement dealt with a director of
the Company as mentioned in note 22, the Group entered into

the following material related party transactions during the year:

BRI R et

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR0 TS H B AT R (RS IBORE i~ 2 TR B AR S0t
8 FHE, Wt T R EE TR . Tl AR
SR BRI AR A W B

SRR R AR R IR B R A T AR o TR AR AE R it i I
Zn o AR EHE) AR 25 52 1 B
I TR o

HE T NET A= —HIEERE, EARARERL
HoAth a2 EER AL IR G B A RE S5 A AT LA A s L As S B S
#08 N R 111,0007C S AT N B 109,000TC B A AE N 2 8 4
TR

26. BT 2 RSB Bk

() TEEHEAEME

M FEZE BN BME O SIAA AT R, TR
TE8 P -

(b) AR T2 5

ERPRIE 22 fr ik A R E R P B 2 HR A, AR A 4R
PRI S AT BB AR5 5 -

2019 2018

R U e AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHETIC ANRMETIC

Lease payment to a related company 75 BHIf 5 FH 42 223 -
Income for PM services from a related fﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ%/ N TR =T N e N

company (Note) RIS B BRI A AN BB T B O (T 14,528 21,760

Note:

A related company is an entity in which a director of the

Company, Mr. GUO Xia has significant influence.

(c) Details of balances with related parties are disclosed in notes
17 and 20.
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27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES IN RESPECT
OF LITIGATION CLAIMS

As of 31 December 2019, certain subsidiaries of the Group are
defendants in proceedings relating to its customers. Based on the
respective court judgements, management is of the opinion that
the outcome of such proceedings will not exceed the existing
accruals made for such litigation claims as disclosed in note
20(b). Accordingly, there will be no significant impact to the
financial status of the Group.

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior years.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure it is effective and optimises
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group prevailing and projected capital
expenditure and projected investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, the
return of capital to shareholders, the issue of new shares or

selling assets to reduce debt.

The Group assesses the total equity/deficiency presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position for
capital management purposes.

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arise in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks

are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has policies
in place to ensure credit is granted to customers with appropriate
credit history and good reputations through evaluations on
customer past history of making payments when due and have
the ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which they operate. Trade and bills receivables are due within
30 days (2018: 30 days) from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on its five largest
customers (2018: three largest customers) and the largest customer
which represent 90% (2018: 93%) and 32% (2018: 48%) of the
total trade receivables balance respectively.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are authorised financial institutions with

sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after deducting any impairments
or allowances.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period by comparing the risk of a
default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its

obligations; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of the borrower, including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall
due.
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Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises
a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past due. Where
loans or receivables have been written off, the Group, if
practicable and economical, continues to engage in enforcement

activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is
determined for each of the categories. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss
rates for each category and adjusts for forward looking data.
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R A B B I, R A OSORREB A SR B AR T &
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Category Definition Loss provision el EFE HBRAEA G
Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay | 12 month expected losses JgfT EHERIC, STARER 12f H RISHE 2
Non-performing | Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses RIEAT (5 R B B 1 R TR N BHIRR
(b) Liquidity risk (b) YL H) &< b
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible LM HBATEE N WEIE EEEM, Q7

for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

BH IS RE M

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TREVIAEMP G H 2 ERA R R T AWIR, 1t
TR A HIARIT BB SR (B ARRIA, S E i
Sl Hsf T < FIRFHRZ M E) DO AEBAEER
BRI B B F R 4 -

Contractual undiscounted cash flows

HRIARIT BB
Within 1 year or on demand Carrying amount
AR LR HRTAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
2019 ZEIUE NG ANRHETIT
Trade payables, other payables B EAT R, HAt A 300
and accrued charges T g 38,006 38,006
Bank borrowings SRFTEEK 1,514 1,500
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
BRIARIT BB SN
Within 1 year or on demand Carrying amount
—AENEAE R HRIAIE
RMB’000 RMB’000
2018 TE)\E ANRHETIC ANRHETIT
Trade payables, other payables oy AT, HAb A 0E
and accrued charges N REFTE H 29,916 29916
Bank borrowings RITEK 1,514 1,500

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits and bank borrowing. The bank deposits and borrowings
bear interest at variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group’s interest rate profile is monitored by management.

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, it would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately RMB70,000 (2018: decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax and increased/decreased of accumulated
losses by approximately RMB65,000).

96 CHINA HEALTH GROUP INC.
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The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that changes in interest rates occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
point increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.
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LA RSSO L RIS ) EL L 0 B8 T
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MBI FE 4545 1K 0 P2 R R A TR 2 WA DT
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(d) Categories of financial instruments

(d) Ahhfe 2019 2018
SENF T\

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRHEFITC NE#EFIT

R

Financial assets:
Financial assets at amortised cost

(including cash and cash equivalents) KB
Financial liabilities: < Rl AR

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

LABBEAR ST B il £ £

IR e 2 (B a8lie

69,815 51,847

39,506 31,416

(e) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency risk as
most of income and expenses are denominated in the functional
currency of the Group.

(f) Fair values

All financial instruments approximate their respective fair
values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

(e) BB

AR EAAEAETE RSN R, RSB WA TS PAAR
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 30. A F] B THE B # R

COMPANY
2019 2018
“EAE B
RMB’()(p RMB’O@
ANRHETIC PN T
Non-current asset FEREBE
Interests in subsidiaries Bt A Wl - -
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments and other receivables FAATION H A RN R 38 88
Cash and cash equivalents Bl N Bl % EY) 134 2,445
272 2,533
Current liabilities AR
Other payables and accruals HoAt AR R R T2 H 5,327 5,629
Amounts due to subsidiaries B8 s v A 26,387 26,387
31,714 32,016
Net current liabilities FREAE (31,442) (29,483)
Net liabilities b=~ (31,442) (29.483)
Equity T
Share capital i 88,673 88,673
Reserves fiti (120,115) (118,156)
Total equity HEREDS (31,442) (29,483)
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RESULTS eS|
Year ended 31 December
BE+H=+—HILFZ
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
CEUE TR E TR R RN BT
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AR¥ETIT  AR¥TIT AR¥TT AR¥WTIT ARSTC
Revenue e JION 63,216 59,606 58,491 20,241 20,497
Profit/(loss) before tax BrART A JEE) 32,454 27,668 33,898 2,085 (3,376)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrAsHE (4,662) (4,504) (3,444) 42 (111)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive AFE AN AR P i R 2 A
income/(loss) for the year after tax A (5 TR) MRS
before non-controlling interests WA 5 VAL 27,792 23,164 30,454 2,127 (3,487)
Non-controlling interests BEatile e - - - - 134
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive S HIERE RS R 2 AR
income/(loss) for the year after A/ (5 TE) &
non-controlling interests S AU AR A 27,792 23,164 30,454 2,127 (3,353)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BE A
As at 31 December
A= —HIIRERE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZENE SR )E ZE B RN SR RE
RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AREETT  AR¥TIT AR¥ETT AR¥ETT NRHFIT
Total assets less current liabilities M O A A 59,510 29,188 5,804 (25,166) (39,668)
Non-current liabilities BB f=Y (2,530) - - -
Total equity/(deficit) HaiEz ) OEH) 56,980 29,188 5,804 (25,166) (39,668)
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